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AKSHAYA PATRA’S

CARE

We embark on a path with plural destinations, all leading to one
ambition - build a better nation. From children scribbling letters on
slates to young mothers with infants; from people building bridges
and roads to survivors of nature’s forceful elements, we serve with
care and love. We will continue to evolve and innovate to make our
impact relevant... mindful of our vision... dedicated to our mission.



STORY OF
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One day, while looking out of a window in Mayapur,

a small hamlet near Calcutta, Srila Prabhupada saw a group of
children fighting with stray dogs over scraps of food. Deeply moved
by this incident, he resolved to ensure that no one within a ten-mile
radius of his centre would go hungry. This direction to his followers
inspired the genesis of The Akshaya Patra Foundation. It also
became the driving force behind all the milestones that the

Foundation has achieved.

ooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo

His Divine Grace
A.C. Bhaktivedanta Swami Prabhupada




“ By leveraging technology to feed children a quality and hygienic meal,
Akshaya Patra has set world-class standards. Through its efforts, the
Foundation is reaching out to nearly 18 lakh children in 12 States
across the country. I have been told that Akshaya Patra, through its
endeavours, is also contributing towards the two UN Sustainable
Development Goals of Zero Hunger and Quality Education. , ,

Shri Ram Nath Kovind

Hon’ble President of India

During his speech at the presentation ceremony of the Gandhi Peace Prize

“ Under the present circumstances, it is being ensured that adequate
and good quality food is available for children. For this, all the people
associated with Akshaya Patra, right from the cooks to the people
who serve the food, everyone is helping the nation.
I congratulate you for your remarkable achievements and wish that
you will continue with the same attitude of service and dedication. , ,

Shri Narendra Modi

Hon’ble Prime Minister of India

During his speech at the commemoration of serving 3 billion meals



I am enveloped with an overwhelming sense of gratitude, reflecting on the path that Akshaya Patra has traversed over
the years. With humility, I cherish where we are, what we have achieved, and the tremendous opportunities that lie
ahead.

We will continue to work tirelessly in our mission to serve five million children by 2025. Throughout our journey of
nearly two decades, we have been seeking new avenues to contribute to social welfare. Alongside providing hot and
nutritious school lunch to 1.8 million children, we pursue diverse feeding initiatives to serve other sections of society
- across age groups, regions, and communities.

One such initiative is the feeding of nourishing meals to pregnant women and nursing mothers in many Anganwadi
Centres in India. Our endeavour is to address the need for proper nourishment during infancy, which is of utmost
; 6 importance for both, the mother and the child. We have also started a breakfast initiative in Tamil Nadu, serving

7,800 children in Hosur and 5,000 children in Chennai.

The hOpe f or a better f uture f or all Akshaya Patra is dedicated to serving the nation in times of adversity. During natural calamities such as the floods

our benefici aries, especially Children, in Uttar Pradesh and Kerala, we extended our support to those affected by providing over 100,000 meals. Our relief

. feeding efforts have also gone beyond borders during the Nepal earthquake.
gwes us the energy to serve more

and serve better.

We have made progress in our National Endeavour for School Transformation initiatives. We aspire to make a
difference in the lives of thousands of children across the country through these initiatives. AIKYA - the youth
volunteering arm of Akshaya Patra - has garnered the support of 10,000 volunteers for these programmes.

‘Care’ is an account of Akshaya Patra’s progress in the year 2018-19. It will also give you an understanding of our
comprehensive approach to social welfare through different initiatives.

We have been blessed with an encouraging start this year. We were presented with the Gandhi Peace Prize by the
Hon’ble President of India, Shri Ram Nath Kovind. In February, we commemorated the serving of 3 billion cumulative
meals in the presence of the Hon’ble Prime Minister of India, Shri Narendra Modi.

Our organisation has been able to achieve these milestones owing to the incessant support from our stakeholders.

I sincerely thank our beneficiaries for allowing us to serve them, and all the teachers and school staff who have
supported us enthusiastically. I also extend my heartfelt gratitude to our stakeholders - Ministry of Human Resource
Development, Government of India, State Governments, U.T. Administrations, partners, donors, corporates, and our
dynamic community of well-wishers.

With a renewed spirit, we will pursue our commitment to provide food and nutrition for all. The hope for a better
future for all our beneficiaries, especially children, gives us the energy to serve more and serve better.

I truly believe that there is tremendous potential in all of us working together, to bring our nation a better tomorrow.

Sincerely,

A a el
s

Madhu Pandit Dasa

Chairman
The Akshaya Patra Foundation



Akshaya Patra is dedicated to serve children and make a difference in their lives. We have received tremendous
support from the Government and all our stakeholders in our endeavours.

Today, we serve hot, safe, tasty, and nutritious meals to 1.8 million children in 18,192 schools across 12 states and
2 union territories of the country. Our mission is to serve 5 million children by 2025.

We will continue working in tandem with the Government to provide nutrition support to children and ignite a spark
of change in their lives through various initiatives. We are also broadening our engagement with communities to
further the sustainability of our efforts.

‘ ‘ This year, Akshaya Patra reached the milestone of serving 3 billion cumulative meals since its inception. Learning
. from our nineteen-year experience, we have been able to develop and implement initiatives whose beneficiaries
We are also broadenlng include people across the social spectrum. We will continue our efforts to serve the society as we progress.

our engagement with
communities to further the
sustainability of our efforts.

We thank you for your unwavering support and for allowing us the opportunity to serve.

KEY HIGHLIGHTS OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19

« Total number of mid-day meals served - 3,065 lakhs

o During FY 2018-19, the Foundation added 8 new kitchens - Kandi in Telangana; Bhilwara, Udaipur,
Bikaner, and Jhalawar in Rajasthan; Maht in Uttar Pradesh; and Gudivada and Kuppam in Andhra Pradesh

» The cost break-up for the fiscal was 86% for programme implementation, 11% for programme management,
and 3% for fundraising and communications

On behalf of the Board of Trustees,

T.V. Mohandas Pai
Independent Trustee
The Akshaya Patra Foundation
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Our Mission
‘To feed 5 million children by 2025’

Our Vision
‘No child in India shall be deprived of
education because of hunger’

Iﬂ.ﬂﬁ. o W
Whom We Serve

We serve the children of Government and

Government-aided schools across India

Our Values

» Compassion

e Integrity

o Quality

e Synergy

e Trustworthiness
e Devotion

Other Feeding Initiatives

o Anganwadi feeding

» Feeding programmes in special schools
¢ Feeding programmes for old-age homes
e Feeding the homeless

» Meals for Mothers (Widow feeding)

e Disaster relief feeding

Social Initiatives

e Scholarship programmes

o Health check-up camps

o Life-skills programmes

o After-class tuitions

o Community health camps

¢ School rejuvenation programme

e —
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Our Purpose

To provide wholesome and nutritious
meals on every school day to children,
thereby contributing to address classroom
hunger, promote education, and develop
confident citizens for the nation
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Our Programme

The Akshaya Patra Foundation started
implementing the Mid-Day Meal initiative
in June 2000. What started with 1,500
children in five Government schools of
Bengaluru, Karnataka, has now evolved
into an efficient programme with over
1.8 million beneficiaries across 12 states
and 2 union territories
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A Successful Public-Private Partnership

i Akshaya Patra implements the Mid-Day Meal Scheme in

o partnership with the Government of India, State Governments,

T B and U.T. Administrations. Additionally, corporate houses and
individual donors extend their generous support to our cause,
helping us achieve the full potential of this programme.
A synergy of various entities coming together for a common
goal has made this Public-Private Partnership an
effective model
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Honoured with the prestigious Gandhi Peace
Prize, Akshaya Patra had a promising start this
year. The award was presented to the Foundation
for serving mid-day meals to millions of

children across the country. Steadfast support
from all our stakeholders, paired with Akshaya
Patra’s fortitude to serve people, brought the
organisation to the milestone of serving 3 billion
cumulative meals in February 2019.

The Foundation currently feeds wholesome
meals to 1.8 million children on every school day.
Through the course of our nineteen-year journey
as an implementing partner of the Government’s
Mid-Day Meal (MDM) Scheme, we have
constantly found ways to transform and grow in
the domain of child nutrition and development.
Furthermore, we have continuously strived to
use our resources effectively and reach more
people with every step. Akshaya Patra has been
implementing various feeding initiatives to serve
people across age groups, communities, and
regions.

Akshaya Patra’s ‘Care’ will bring to you the
highlights of the organisation in the past year,
its current operations, as well as the approaches
that will steer all its actions in the future.

Over the years, our effective partnership with
the Government has allowed us to serve more
beneficiaries in various locations. Fight new 1

kitchens began feeding in Rajasthan, Uttar ’;'

Pardesh, Andhra Pradesh, and Telangana. In

FY 2019-20, Akshaya Patra will begin operations

of 16 new kitchens. The first section of our

Annual Report, titled ‘Organisational Overview’,

will give you a complete summary of the * ,—.:_-"
organisation - the quality and safety standards d:"' ‘g.

that make an Akshaya Patra meal, the reach of -'"E"ﬁ ﬁ 7‘

the Foundation across the country, and abridge
financials. It will also introduce you to all our
Board members, the Consultative Council, an
the Management Council.
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We have continuously :

strived to use our

resources effectively

and reach more
people with
every step.
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The Trustees’ Report, captured in the second

section - ‘Performance’, will give you an
understanding of the revenue and expenditures of the
organisation during the year. The Foundation spent
94% of the total outlay on mid-day meal feeding,

5% on other feeding programmes, and 1% on other
programmes. This section will also highlight the
significant events, and awards that the organisation
was bestowed with, the past year.

Ranging from serving wholesome meals to nursing
mothers in Anganwadi Centres to offering food at
nominal prices to the working class through the
Akshaya Kalewa programme, our initiatives seek to
serve people across the social spectrum. The third
section, ‘Initiatives elaborates all the diverse feeding
programmes implemented by the Foundation. Towards
the end of the section, our beneficiaries will share
with you their thoughts on Akshaya Patra’s meals.

The Management Discussion and Analysis included in
the fourth section of the Annual Report, ‘Strategy’, will
give you details about Akshaya Patra’s operations and
plans for FY 2019-20. This section will also discuss the
organisation’s direction for the future.

Akshaya Patra was honoured with the ICAI Gold
Shield Award for ‘Excellence in Financial Reporting’
2017-18 in the Not-for-Profit Sector for the 7th time.
We have always made an effort to be transparent

and accountable in all our practices and processes. In
‘Financials), the fifth section, detailed financial reports
will be presented to you. The last section - ‘Our Network,
holds a message for all our stakeholders and details
Akshaya Patra’s network.

As you progress from one section to the next, we hope
that this Annual Report enables you to learn more
about Akshaya Patra, and encourages you to join our
efforts for a healthier future.




Akshaya Patra is thankful to the Ministry of Human Resource
Development (MHRD), Government of India, State
Governments, U.T. Administrations, and the local governing
bodies for the opportunity to implement the Mid-Day Meal
(MDM) Programme in Government and Government-aided
schools as well as extend its services to communities.

The Government, Food Corporation of India (FCI), and
the Food and Civil Supplies Corporations have provided
food grains to Akshaya Patra on time, significantly aiding
the successful implementation of the MDM Programme
in beneficiary schools. The Foundation is grateful to the
Government for the provision of grants and subsidies,
ensuring the sustainability of its services.

In the year 2018-19, the contribution by the Government for
Akshaya Patra’s programme was 321,732.74 lakhs, vis-a-vis
the total income of ¥52,118.33 lakhs.

The Ministry of Finance, Government of India, has authorised
Akshaya Patra to seek donations under section 80G of the
Income Tax Act. The Ministry of Home Affairs has accorded
the organisation permission to collect overseas contributions
under the Foreign Contribution Regulation Act (FCRA), 1976.
These approvals substantially drive Akshaya Patra’s resource
mobilisation efforts; the Foundation expresses its gratitude to
both these Ministries.

Akshaya Patra is hugely appreciative of the Governments’
efforts to continuously strengthen the MDM Programme.
Corresponding to these efforts, the Foundation continues to
furnish the required FCRA returns every year.

The organisation is a member of the National Steering-cum-
Monitoring Committee and Empowered Committee for the
Mid-Day Meal Scheme. Akshaya Patra thanks the MHRD for
this opportunity to offer suggestions to the Governments to
further develop the MDM Scheme by focusing on areas of
programme implementation, impact assessment, monitoring,
and community engagement.

JE—
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Akshaya Patra expresses sincere gratitude

to the Government of India and the State
Governments of Karnataka, Uttar Pradesh,
Rajasthan, Odisha, Gujarat, Andhra Pradesh,
Chhattisgarh, Assam, Telangana, Tamil
Nadu, Maharashtra, Tripura, Uttarakhand,
Jharkhand, Puducherry, Government of
NCT of Delhi, U.T. Administration of Dadra
& Nagar Haveli, and U.T. Administration

of Daman & Diu for their unwavering
support. Akshaya Patra looks forward to
strengthening these resourceful partnerships
with the Government of India, State
Governments, and U.T. Administrations to
make a more significant impact on the lives
of many more children and communities
across the country.

The Foundation was conferred with the
Gandhi Peace Prize by the Government of
India. Akshaya Patra expresses its profound
gratitude to the Hon’ble President of India,
Shri Ram Nath Kovind and the Hon’ble Prime
Minister, Shri Narendra Modi for presenting
this prestigious award to the organisation.
Akshaya Patra also thanks the jury under

the chairmanship of Hon’ble Prime Minister,
Shri Narendra Modi, and comprising the
Chief Justice of India, Shri Ranjan Gogoi;

Lok Sabha Speaker, Smt Sumitra Mahajan;
Leader of Congress in Lok Sabha, Mallikarjun
Kharge; and Member of Parliament,

Shri LK. Advani.

Akshaya Patra commemorated the serving
of 3 billion cumulative meals in February
2019, in the presence of the Hon’ble

Prime Minister, Shri Narendra Modi. The
organisation is grateful to the Government
for its steadfast support that has led to this
milestone.

Akshaya Patra aspires to strengthen its
partnerships with the Government of India,
State Governments, and U.T. Administrations
to serve beneficiaries year after year.
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Partnerships with the Governments

Akshaya Patra extends its gratitude to the Ministry of Human Resource Development (MHRD),

Government of India, and the following State Governments and U.T. Administrations.

SWHE BT
e o)

Government of Assam

Government of Karnataka

hal [y Wirad Sberme

MINISTRY OF HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT
GOVERNMENT OF INDIA

Government of Maharashtra

TR A

Government of Rajasthan

Srey an?

Government of Telangana

o FETTE

Government of Tripura

L.l Lo L ]

Government of Uttarakhand

The Foundation hopes to continue its endeavours and build efficient partnerships with the

Government to serve more people.

Note - The list above is in an alphabetical order
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¢ Andhra Pradesh
Akshaya Patra, with persistent support from the Government of
Andhra Pradesh, currently serves 82,948 children in 703 schools
in the state. The organisation also serves in 20 Anganwadi
Centres. Akshaya Patra is working towards establishing 5 new
kitchens in Andhra Pradesh.

* Assam
Akshaya Patra’s partnership with the Government of Assam has
allowed it to serve in Guwahati since nine years. The Foundation
serves 40,782 children in 568 schools. In the coming years,
Akshaya Patra will launch 1 new kitchen in Assam.

e Chhattisgarh
The Foundation began serving in Bhilai, Chhattisgarh, ten years
ago. In partnership with the Government of Chattisgarh, it serves
24,674 children in 176 schools today.

* Dadra & Nagar Haveli and Daman & Diu
The Foundation has associated with the U.T. Administrations of
Dadra & Nagar Haveli and Daman & Diu to establish a centralised
kitchen in Silvassa, with a feeding capacity of 60,000 meals.

¢ Delhi
The Foundation looks forward to strengthening its partnership
with the Government of NCT of Delhi to serve children in the
region.

* Gujarat
Akshaya Patra currently operates five centralised kitchens in
Gujarat, including the recently inaugurated kitchen in Bhuj.
Owing to the partnership with the Government of Gujarat, the
organisation presently serves 340,433 children in the state. In
addition to the MDM Programme, Akshaya Patra also serves in
1,986 Anganwadi Centres in Gujarat.

¢ Jharkhand
Akshaya Patra looks forward to serve school-going children of the
state, in partnership with the Government of Jharkhand.

e Karnataka
The partnership between Akshaya Patra and the Government
of Karnataka marked the beginning of the Foundation’s
implementation of the MDM Programme on a large scale. Akshaya
Patra currently serves 419,973 children in 2,980 schools in
Karnataka.

° Maharashtra
The Foundation’s partnership with the Government of
Maharashtra began in 2016 with the kitchen in Nagpur. Akshaya
Patra currently serves 39,009 children in 368 schools in
Maharashtra. The organisation will establish 3 new kitchens
in the state.

e Odisha
Since establishing a centralised kitchen at Puri in 2006, Akshaya
Patra has established two more kitchens in Odisha. It has adopted
a decentralised model in Nayagarh. The Foundation’s association
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with the Government of Odisha allows it to serve 225,124
children in 2,057 schools daily.

Puducherry

The Foundation will soon begin feeding in Puducherry with
the support of the Government of Puducherry through its
upcoming kitchen which has a feeding capacity of 50,000
meals.

Rajasthan

The Foundation serves through a total of 9 kitchens in
Rajasthan, and operates a decentralised model in Baran.
New kitchens have been established in Bhilwara, Jhalawar,
Udaipur, and Bikaner. These kitchens serve 263,403 children
in 4,237 schools. Additionally, the partnership with the
Government of Rajasthan allows Akshaya Patra to feed in
463 Anganwadi Centres and implement the Akshaya Kalewa
programme in Jaipur and Ajmer, which serves the working
class.

Tamil Nadu

Akshaya Patra, with the support of the Government of Tamil
Nadu, has launched a breakfast initiative for school-going
children. Currently, it serves 7,800 children in Hosur and
5,000 children in Chennai and looks forward to reaching
20,000 children in the next academic year.

Telangana

The partnership with the Government of Telangana has
allowed Akshaya Patra to serve 123,562 children. The
organisation also provides meals in 721 Anganwadi Centres
in the state.

Tripura

Akshaya Patra established the Great India Talent School in
Kashirampara, Tripura in 2017. Today, the Foundation serves
meals to 911 children in 2 schools.

Uttarakhand

Akshaya Patra’s association with the Government of
Uttarakhand has enabled it to begin establishing 7 kitchens
to serve children shortly.

Uttar Pradesh

Akshaya Patra’s kitchen in Vrindavan in 2004 effectively
made Uttar Pradesh the second state after Karnataka where
the Foundation had started its operations. With the support
from the Government of Uttar Pradesh, the organisation
currently operates through 3 centralised kitchens, serving
240,200 children in 3,508 schools. Akshaya Patra will be
launching its programme in 6 more locations in Uttar
Pradesh including Varanasi, Agra, and Gorakhpur.
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The Mid-Day Meal (MDM) Scheme is a transformative
programme with the well-being of children at its core. It is a
potent intervention to address classroom hunger and provide
nutrition support to school-going children. It serves as an
incentive for children to go to school for receiving proper
education. In its capacity as an implementing partner of the
MDM Scheme, Akshaya Patra operates across 12 states and 2
union territories, contributing to the Government’s flagship
programme.

In order to reach out to children across the country, Akshaya
Patra operates two models of kitchen infrastructure -
centralised and decentralised. Out of the 43 locations across
India, 41 locations serve meals through centralised kitchens,
while two locations have adopted a decentralised model. The
choice is based on the need, terrain, and accessibility of the
area. Centralised kitchens are mechanised units with
state-of-the-art technology to enable the preparation of

over 100,000 meals in just under four hours. Decentralised
kitchens, on the other hand, are smaller kitchens typically
catering to one or two schools and operated by women

Self-Help Groups (SHGs) under the guidance and supervision

of Akshaya Patra.
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At Akshaya Patra, transparency and accountability are
considered paramount. A quarterly compliance dashboard
is prepared for statutes applicable under the Labour

and Industrial Laws, FSSAI, and laws applicable under
finance statutes. The dashboard is presented to the Audit
Committee (AC). The internal auditors review the critical
requirements under various statutory enactments and
report to the AC independently.

The Foundation has an Independent Audit Committee,
comprising of eminent members from the field of finance.
It has engaged BSR & Co. LLP as statutory auditors and
Ernst & Young as internal auditors to ensure systems

and compliance, and to opine on the books of account to
the Board of Trustees. This helps in controlling financial
activities at different locations, aiding in reaching out

to more children by adding to the efficiency. In addition
to arrangements for pre-audit, the organisation is also
prepared for donor audits.

The Foundation complies with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Indian Accounting
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). The ‘Gold Shield Award’ constituted by the
ICAI for ‘Excellence in Financial Reporting’ for FY 2017-18
was awarded to Akshaya Patra for the seventh time.

i

Between 2008 and 2013, the Foundation won the coveted
award five times in a row and got inducted into the ICAI’s
Hall of Fame.

An active Board of Trustees provides strategic directions
and ensures uninterrupted and smooth conduct of
operations in all the kitchens throughout the year. The
organisation makes certain that there are no borrowings
or debts in the books as this entails cash outflow towards
interest payments. Donated funds are utilised to provide
continuous and regular payment for the supply of goods
and services.

The Foundation has also set up a Monitoring and
Evaluation wing to focus on research and analyse health,
education, and skill development of the beneficiaries.
Monitoring and evaluation of various initiatives and
research studies related to impact assessment for MDM,
policy revisions, and social audits provide the baseline to
plan interventions and strengthen the existing programme
policies.

Akshaya Patra kitchens strictly adhere to food safety

and quality management norms. The quality of food is
continuously monitored and evaluated. Food safety training
modules are developed for optimal implementation of
safety norms. Strict adherence to standard quality practices

is maintained to ensure that quality criteria are met. Qualified
professionals are hired to monitor and assess food quality.

The Foundation strives to ensure that sufficient food is
delivered to all the assigned schools daily. The entire process
of preparing a meal starts with the selection of suitable
suppliers to procure materials by adhering to Supplier
Quality Management (SQM) procedures. Only FSSAI and
AGMARK-compliant raw materials, and water meeting BIS
10500 standards are used for cooking, to ensure safety.
Food safety is maintained by complying with Food Safety
and Management System (FSMS) and Good Manufacturing
Practice (GMP).

Kitchens across 16 locations have completed the
implementation of ISO 22000:2005 to establish food safety
policies and systematically improve and sustain quality.
Akshaya Patra adheres to statutory and regulatory norms
such as the Minimum Wages Act, Factory Act, and Boiler Act.

The organisation strongly believes that all children must be
given an equal opportunity to grow, learn, and achieve their
dreams. Akshaya Patra’s good governance practices, as well as
best practices in kitchens, are directed at providing hot, safe,
tasty, and nutritious meals to children every school day.
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ANDHRA PRADESH
LOCATIONS CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Visakhapatnam 21,603 92
Kakinada 13,583 {0)
Mangalagiri 17,929 200
Nellore 21,243 232
Kuppam 6,692 79
Gudivada 1,898 20 (AWCs)
82,948 703
ASSAM
LOCATION CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Guwahati 40,782 568
40,782 568
CHHATTISGARH
LOCATION CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Bhilai 24,674 176
24,674 176
GUJARAT
LOCATIONS CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Ahmedabad 92,122 518
Bhavnagar 23,165 56
Vadodara 82,976 621
Surat 129,078 357
Kalol 13,092 93

340,433 1,645

..........................................................

KARNATAKA

LOCATIONS CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Bengaluru - HK Hill 89,998 558
Bengaluru - VK Hill 72,292 597
Ballari 93,148 577
Hubballi 104,150 813
Mangaluru 13,894 135
Mysuru 19,356 155
Jigani 27,135 145

419,973 2,980
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Kitchens in operation as of 31 March, 2019
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ODISHA
LOCATIONS CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Bhubaneswar 103,889 729
Puri 57,945 654
Nayagarh 21,390 319
Rourkela 41,900 355
225,124 2,057
RAJASTHAN
LOCATIONS CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Jaipur 106,636 1,898
Jodhpur 13,883 209
Nathdwara 48,678 899
Ajmer 17,625 190
Baran 11,911 161
Bhilwara 12,223 127
Jhalawar 15,140 220
Bikaner 15,195 AR
Udaipur 22,112 318
263,403 4,237
MAHARASHTRA
LOCATIONS CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Nagpur 26,410 245
Thane 12,599 123
39,009 368
TAMIL NADU
LOCATION CHILDREN SCHOOL
Chennai 880 1
880 1
TELANGANA
LOCATIONS CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Kandi 68,152 707
Narsingi 16,655 201
Kothagudem 22,255 244
Warangal 16,500 795 (AWCs)
123,562 1,947
TRIPURA
LOCATION CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Kashirampara 911 02
911 02
UTTAR PRADESH
LOCATIONS CHILDREN SCHOOLS
Lucknow 103,462 1,354
Vrindavan 129,317 2,032
Maht, Vrindavan 7,421 122
240,200 3,508



The Akshaya Patra Foundation is registered as a not-for-profit organisation under the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 (Reg. No. 154).
The Trust Deed will be made available upon request.

The Akshaya Patra Foundation is registered under Section 12A (a) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Akshaya Patra Foundation is registered under Section 6 (1) (a) of the Foreign Contribution (Regulation) Act, 2010 (FCRA
Reg. No. 094421037).

MAIN BANKERS

Axis Bank ¢ Yes Bank . Kotak Mahindra Bank . IndusInd Bank

No. 10/116, 1st Block, : Plot No. 93, 2nd Sampige @ 63/1, Makam Plaza, Margosa - Sri Ganesh Towers, No. 124,
Dr. Rajkumar Road, | Main Road, 7th Cross, ¢ Road, Opp. 18th Cross Bus Stand, :  3rd Main Road, Margosa Road,
Rajajinagar, i Malleshwaram, i Malleshwaram, i Malleswaram,

Bengaluru - 560010

Bengaluru - 560003 Bengaluru - 560003 Bengaluru - 560003

AUDITORS

IGAAP Financials: M/s BSR & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants

IFRS Financials: KPMG

Embassy Golf Links Business Park,

Pebble Beach, B Block, 3rd Floor,

Off Intermediate Ring Road,

Bengaluru - 560071

Abridged Income and Expenditure Statement ? (in lakhs)

2017-18 2018-19
Total Income 41,848.97 52,118.33
Total Expenditure 40,902.90 51,627.02
Excess of Income Over Expenditure 946.07 491.31
Abridged Balance Sheet ¥ (in lakhs)
2017-18 2018-19
Fixed Assets 15,730.18 21,203.84
Net Non-Current Assets 6,843.99 4,869.15
Net Current Assets 15,982.98 17,894.75
Total Assets 38,557.15 43,967.74
Trust Funds, Designated Funds, and
Excess of Income Over Expenditure 38,557.15 43,967.74
Comparative Number of Meals (in lakhs)
3,437.69
3,265.18
2,900.14 2,983.24
2,754.89 .
2014-15 201516 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
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Government Support ? (in lakhs)

AWEY VL
20,465.64
18,017.41
16,525.97
14,774.69 .
]
2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
Source: Income and Expenditure Account
Donations Received  (in lakhs)
31,795.71
25,260.58
21,527.61
17,149.89
14,703.40 I
2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Source: Receipts and Payments Account
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Year-Wise % Cost Break-Up

3%

2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Source: Income and Expenditure Account

Asset Value ¥ (in lakhs)

46,739.49

35,615.58

27,636.02
22,937.18
20,209.94 .

2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19

Source: Balance Sheet

M Programme Management Cost
M Fundraising Cost

™ Programme Cost




Cost Per Meal

49%
Il Donor Support
M Government Support
59%
Educatio
2017-18 2018-19 I
tuniti
S iad
- T
- ..
. - -
] d " aae :
/ j #ilteas
Cost Per Meal (with Grains) in ¥ T y 7
el ‘.- - g
L i [
J‘" P ':f o i ¥
. iy &
{ 0.71 ...-"', - .
-
1 o iy s W
1.42 e ':.“.il“r"
0.43 ; - ' g "'“'"*“:.':
0.55 0.19 | LR SR R ¥
1.14 M Programme Implementation
0.15 028 mFood Production #*
mFood Distribution :
m Purchase and Stores ™
=
11.41 M Food Safety and Quality '.:
9.54 [ Compliance and Governance o
=
M Programme Management and Evaluation e
Fundraising and Communications
2017-18 2018-19
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CHILDREN IN SCHOOL

The Akshaya Patra Foundation believes that a well-thought governance policy is key to an organisation’s success, as
adherence to it helps the organisation perform efficiently and ethically while creating value for its stakeholders.

Akshaya Patra strives for excellence through the adoption of laws, regulations, and best practices. We believe that
transparency, in the context of financials and operations, in particular, adds to the accountability of our initiatives and

. STRATEGY & DIRECTION
the organisation as a whole. e Union Government directions
. e Statements of objectives
Our governance practices also reflect the culture of trusteeship, which is an important component of our value system. © Operation capability plans
5 e Resource allocation o
® Strategic planning
. BASIC TENETS
"l:"g ili i Stewardshi
Py FEuiRR 1y to the FoRgRllon and stakehglgR PERFORMANCE MONITORING P COMPLIANCE & ACCOUNTABLITY
= ‘*\ quitable treatment to all stakeholders o Integrated performance monitoring system 'a‘!,{ * Policy legislation
1 . 1 . . . . Q o1
e Strategic guidance and effective monitoring by the Board * Financial performance budge.t evalqanon § % o Acc.ounte}b111ty
» Monthly financial review & 2 ¢ Financial management
ansparency and timely disclosure f &S%% ¢ Audit committee / internal audits
N
TRUSTEES & %
%
"?% MANAGEMENT y
>
e % & TRANSPARENCY & DISCLOSURE
: )
* Occupational health and safety 6@ é,‘& e Operational framework and procedures
) . ST % g e Communications and relationship
° Communications systems % & management
* Knowledge management %@
* Employee relations % Communications

© Performance management systems
® Process excellence and innovations

- PUBLIC-PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP g

c e Codes of conduct K
. » Accountability framework %
. ¢ National Committee reporting D
. e Food Safety Management System D
o » Adherence to Government regulatory “
framework

HUNGER ALLEVIATION FOR ENABLING EDUCATION
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Madhu Pandit Dasa

Chairman, The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Madhu Pandit Dasa started Akshaya Patra in the year 2000. Passionate about science,
he did his B.Tech in Civil Engineering from IIT-Bombay. He came across the teachings
of Srila Prabhupada during his days at IIT-Bombay and decided to dedicate his life to
the latter’s mission. Madhu Pandit Dasa has over three decades of selfless work behind
him, conceiving and implementing several social initiatives that impact millions of
people in the country, giving them a better quality of life. The Government of India
has conferred upon him the prestigious Padma Shri in recognition of the distinguished
service rendered by Akshaya Patra for the children of India.

Chanchalapathi Dasa
Vice-Chairman, The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Chanchalapathi Dasa has been working in the field of spiritual education since 1984
and social development since 2000. He pursued his Bachelor’s Degree in PSG College of
Technology, Coimbatore, where he came in touch with ISKCON and Srila Prabhupada’s
mission. Later, he joined the Indian Institute of Science, Bengaluru, to pursue his
Masters in Electrical Communication Engineering. He has combined the spirit of
compassion with his education in technology and applied it to social development.

He is currently involved in strategy, planning, and governance of Akshaya Patra.

Ratnangada Govinda Dasa
Trustee, The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Ratnangada Govinda Dasa’s association with Akshaya Patra began in 2004 when he was
assigned the responsibility of building the Foundation’s kitchen in Hubballi, Karnataka.
Since then, he has played a pivotal role in the implementation of Akshaya Patra’s
Mid-Day Meal Programme in Jaipur, Jodhpur, and Nathdwara in Rajasthan. He was
instrumental in establishing the decentralised system in the rural district of Baran,
which was a highly successful case of social intervention for the benefit of local tribes.
He was also instrumental in starting Akshaya Vastra, an initiative for distributing free
clothes to the underprivileged.

Jaganmohan Krishna Dasa
Trustee, The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Jaganmohan Krishna Dasa joined Akshaya Patra in 2005 as a Programme Coordinator
for the Jaipur kitchen. He has been instrumental in setting up kitchen operations in
Ahmedabad, Surat, Vadodara, and Nathdwara. Currently, he serves as the President
of Akshaya Patra - Gujarat region. He has a Bachelor’s Degree in Electronics and
Communication Engineering. He has a keen eye for design and innovation. He has
studied and implemented innovative alternatives from Germany and Sweden to
enhance Akshaya Patra’s Mid-Day Meal Programme.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19
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T.V. Mohandas Pai

Chairman, Manipal Global Education Services

Mohandas Pai, in a career spanning over 30 years, has worked in areas ranging from
finance and accounting to social impact innovation, policy formulation, and the
venture and start-up ecosystem. In 2015, he was honoured with the distinguished
Padma Shri award by the then Hon’ble President of India, Shri Pranab Mukherjee.

He has previously served as the Chief Financial Officer and Member of the Board of
Directors of Infosys. In 2015, he was voted the ‘Number One Angel Investor in India’, an
addition to his already impressive list of accolades, which includes the ‘Chief Financial
Officer of the Year’ in 2002 and ‘Best Chief Financial Officer in India’ in 2004.

Abhay Jain
Advisor, Manipal Education Medical Group

Abhay Jain is the Advisor of Manipal Education Medical Group since 2008. He has
worked for a decade in the Aditya Birla Group and served as a Board Member of
IIM-Bangalore and MNIT-Jaipur from 2004-2009. He holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Science, Bachelor’s Degree in General Law, and a Post-Graduate Diploma in
Management. Abhay Jain has used his excellent networking skills effectively to
promote social development over the years.

V. Balakrishnan
Founder and Chairman, Exfinity Venture Partners; Chairman, Tejas Networks

V. Balakrishnan is the Founder and Chairman of Exfinity and the Chairman of
MicroGraam. He has significant experience in leadership positions in the finance
domain with expertise in corporate finance, risk management, among others. He

has held several positions in Infosys, including that of Chief Financial Officer and
Member of the Board of Infosys. He has been honoured with the Best CFO Award by
CNBC and Finance Asia. V. Balakrishnan has been associated with Akshaya Patra as a
Trustee since 2006. He also serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Raj P. Kondur
CEO, Plank Labs

Raj P. Kondur is the CEO of Plank Labs, a technology and media business incubator and
holding company with an impressive list of holdings which include Plank Energy (energy
storage), Plank Media (TV and digital media), and Plank Sky (commercial drones). He
co-founded and served as the Managing Director of Chrys Capital and has also served as

a partner at Ascent Capital, both leading private equity firms. A Harvard Business School
graduate, he has previously worked with Morgan Stanley and A.T. Kearney in the USA. Raj
P. Kondur has been a Trustee of Akshaya Patra since April 2002. He is also a member of
Akshaya Patra’s Audit Committee.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (USA)

: Gururaj “Desh” Deshpande : Madhu Pandit Dasa : Chanchalapathi Dasa
Rajendra Babu S Ravindra Chamaria Board Chairman, Chairman, Vice-Chairman,
Chairman - Advisory Board, Vice-Chairman - Advisory Board, i The Akshaya Patra Foundation, USA i The Akshaya Patra Foundation, India i The Akshaya Patra Foundation, India
The Akshaya Patra Foundation The Akshaya Patra Foundation : Prabhakar “PK” Kalavacherla : B.V. Jagadeesh : Vandana Tilak
Former Chief Justice of India, Chairman and Managing Director, : Partner, KPMG USA : Managing Partner, KAAJ Ventures i CEO, The Akshaya Patra Foundation, USA
Former Chairperson of NHRC, Infinity Infotech Parks Ltd. o . . .
Chair Professor - NLSIU Siva Sivaram Srivatsan Rajan

: Executive Vice-President, Western Digital : Partner, Bain & Company

i N.R. Narayana Murthy : Deepak Chopra : Nitin Nohria

: Founder, Infosys : Founder, The Chopra Center for Wellbeing : Dean, Harvard Business School

: Satya Tiwari : Fareed Zakaria : Sumir Chadha

: President, Surya Inc. ¢ Author, Journalist, and Host of CNN’s “GPS”  : Co-founder & Managing Director,
Sangita Jindal Rajendra J Hinduja - Dr. Rachana Kulkarni : WestBridge Capital Partners
Chairperson, Former Managing Director, { Cardiologist
JSW Foundation Gokaldas Exports Ltd.

Address

The Akshaya Patra Foundation, USA
92 Montvale Avenue, Suite 2500, Stoneham, MA 02180 - USA
Office: +1-781-438-3090 Ext. 1 | Fax: 781-481-9155 | Email: contact@apusa.org

BOARD OF TRUSTEES (UK)

: Ravindra Chamaria : Chanchalapathi Dasa : Abhishek Khaitan
: Chairman, The Akshaya Patra Foundation, UK  : Vice-Chairman, i Partner,
Dr. Devi Sh etty Shannu Kaw : Vice-Chairman - Advisory Board, i The Akshaya Patra Foundation, India i Bower Cotton Solicitors
Chairman and Executive Director, Director - Operations, TZe Akshaya 5 atra Foundation, India : peter Marano
. : Chairman and Managing Director, :
Narayana Health Cisco Systems  Infinity Infotech Parks Ltd. : Founder and Chairman, Broadgate West Ltd.

ADVISORY BOARD (UK)

: Nirmal Banthia : Prashant Jhawar : Mihir Kapadia

: Managing Director, Memo Group : Vice-Chairman, Usha Martin Ltd. : CEO, Sun Global Investments
: Wayne McArdle : Yogesh Mehta : Kris Murali

: Senior Partner, Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP  : Group Managing Director, TEAM Group : Deputy CEO, Sense

: Rashmi Chatwani : Sanjay Sharma : Nitin Singhal

: Director, Kanta Enterprises Ltd. i Managing Director, Interiors With Art : Partner, Fresco Global

Ramesh Ramanathan
Co-Founder,

Janaagraha : Bhawani Singh Shekhawat

i CEO, The Akshaya Patra Foundation, UK

Address

The Akshaya Patra Foundation, UK

1 Snowden Street, London, EC2A 2DQ,

UK Charity No: 1117756

Phone: +44-20-7422-6612 | Email: info@akshayapatra.co.uk
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Srivatsan Rajan
Partner, Bain & Company

Dr. P. Sadananda Maiya

Promoter and Director, Maiyas Beverages and Foods

Dr. G. Raghuram Sanjeev Kapoor
Director, IIM Bangalore Celebrity Chef

Sandeep Banerjee
Former Managing Director, Compass Group (India)

Nazeeb Arif
Executive Vice-President and Chief of
Corporate Communications, ITC Limited

e

Dr. Subba Rao M Gavaravarapu
Scientist ‘E’ - Deputy Director,
National Institute of Nutrition (ICMR)

Sahil Barua
Co-founder and CEO, Delhivery

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

Chanchalapathi Dasa

Vice-Chairman

e

I
Vyomapada Dasa
President, Chhattisgarh and Jharkhand

Suvyakta Narasimha Dasa
President, Uttar Pradesh and Uttarakhand

Satya Gaura Chandra Dasa
President, Andhra Pradesh and Telangana

Ratnangada Govinda Dasa
Trustee and President, Rajasthan

Jaganmohan Krishna Dasa
Trustee and President, Gujarat

Janardhana Dasa
President, Assam and Tripura

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

Shridhar Venkat
Chief Executive Officer
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Akshaya Patra’s stakeholders include beneficiaries,
parents, teachers and school staff, Ministry of Human
Resource Development (MHRD), Government of India,
State Governments, U.T. Administrations, individual and
corporate donors, employees of the organisation, and
volunteers.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES  ...... . ADVISORY BOARD Our stakeholders play a vital role in our mission of serving
children and the larger society, for a better tomorrow. It is
their diligent support and co-operation that enables us to

move forward in its endeavours.
..................... Y AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Changemakers

seccccccccccccccce

We firmly believe that every individual can become

a changemaker. The individuals and entities we have
partnered with over the years have demonstrated true
potential in bringing about transformation in our society.
They form the backbone of Akshaya Patra’s functions and
will continue to be the inspiration behind our growth.

CHAIRMAN

eecccccccccccce

VICE-CHAIRMAN We sincerely thank all the policy and grant-makers, donors,
partners, and the vibrant community of well-wishers for
their support and enthusiasm to collaborate with us and
serve society.

CONSULTATIVE COUNCIL cocsscccccccssssscses cos

Policy and Grant Makers

..................... essee.  MANAGEMENT COUNCIL

weoeesccccsccsscccscccsccssccce

OPERATIONS | PROJECTS & INFRASTRUCTURE
RESOURCE MOBILISATION | COMMUNICATIONS
DONOR CARE MANAGEMENT | FINANCE & ACCOUNTS
PEOPLE FUNCTION | ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
MONITORING & EVALUATION

e U.T. Administration of Daman & Diu

29 ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19




2018
. .............................................. ‘ .............................................. . ............................................ . ............................................. ‘ ............................................................................................. . ............................................... . .............................................. . .............................................. . ........................
APRIL-MAY JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER JANUARY FEBRUARY
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2019 2019
® 5 April © 18 July e 2 August ¢ 15 September ® 4 October * 5 November ¢ 12 December ¢ 4 January ¢ 1 February
: Smt Sanyukta Bhatia, : Shri ital ant, : Mr G.L. Parmar, : Smt Sheet: e, : Dr. Neelkan ewarli, : ri K.G. Balakrishnan, : Shri Chandra Prakash, : Mr Anantha : Aroun nation
: Smt Sanyukta Bhati ¢ Shri Amitabh K; iMrGL.P : Smt Sheetal Ugal : Dr. Neelkanth T i ¢ Shri K.G. Balakrish : Shri Chandra Prakash, : Mr Ananth ¢ Around 150 national
i Mayor of Lucknow i CEO of NITI Aayog, i Deputy Mamlatdar i Additional Municipal i State Minister for Former Chief Justice i ADM, Civil Supplies, i Radhakrishnan, CEO i and international
i District, visited the i visited the Hubballi : MDM, Vadodara : Commissioner, : Legislature and Justice, i of India, visited the i Lucknow, Uttar - and MD, Infosys BPM,  : delegates from
i Lucknow kitchen i kitchen i Municipal Corporation, : and Shri Shivaji i Information, Sports i Ahmedabad kitchen ¢ Pradesh, visited the ¢ visited the Hubballi i Deshpande
« 3 May « 27 July V%SIted the Vadodara Daundakér, Du‘.eFtorate and Youth Welfa.rg, + 11 November ! Lucknow kitchen  kitchen along with Foundation’s
. . . . i kitchen : of Education, visited i Uttar Pradesh, visited ) . : other dignitaries : ‘Development Dialogue
Shri Atul Garg, i Dr. Vindu Pratap Singh, ! the Thane kitchen ! the Lucknow kitchen Shri Dipak Chauhan, ' R
. State Minister for  Joint Director and State ° 8 August ’ i Assistant Labour e 17 January 2019 Vlélt?d the
: Food and Logistics, : Programme Officer : Shri Ravi Srivastava, ¢ 17 September e 10 October : Commissioner,  Smt Deepa Cholan, : Hubballi kitchen
Civil Supplies, Rent i (Malaria & VBD), Uttar Assistant Labour ¢ Shri Rabinatra Nath, 15 delegates from the Bhavnagar, visited the : LA.S., Deputy o 4 February
COHU‘OI., Consu.mer : Pradesh, visited the : Commissioner, Chairman of Mini.stry G.oyernment of Nepal i Ahmedabad kitchen : Commisioner, and  Representatives from
Protection, Weights i Lucknow kitchen Labour Departrn.ept, of Small' and Mc?dlum V%51ted the Lucknow + 16 November : Dr. B.C. Satisha, LA.S., MUFG Bank Ltd.,
i and Measures, Food i Uttar Pradesh, visited : Enterprises India, and  : kitchen i CEO, ZP of Dharwad ‘M ke Toh
i  Shri ¢ Shri Vikash Kumar : ’ ’ : Mr Junsuke John
¢ Safety and Drug i the Lucknow kitchen : Shri PK. Jha, General : f i ; L .
: S ¢ . : e 22 October . - . : visited the Hubballi i Koike, Executive
i Administration, Uttar { Manager, Central . . ¢ Singh, Additional City . - .
: - o 10 August : e ¢ Smt Shircy V., Hon’ble E : i kitchen i Officer and Regional
i Pradesh, visited the ) . i Zone, National ' Tudee of Hi h’ . Magistrate, Nagar-6, - e for Ldi
i Lucknow kitchen Programme Officer i Small Industries : Judge o 18h Court ¢ Lucknow, Uttar xecut.we or lndia
¢ of ICDS, Ahmedabad : . ¢ of Kerala, visited the : . ¢ and Sri Lanka, and
: .. . i Corporation (NSIC), : . i Pradesh, visited the : -
i Municipal Corporation, : . . . ¢ Ahmedabad kitchen : . i Mr G. Sriram,
P : visited the Jaipur i Lucknow kitchen : ’ ;
i visited the Ahmedabad ;. i Managing Director,
M ¢ kitchen ® 26 October 19N b : ’
i kitchen . Smt Samapti Chatterjee ° ovember : Global Corporate
* 20 August Justice, Calcutta High ’ Shri Girish Chfm.dra Banking, South India,
. . . . : > ¢ Yadav, State Minister { visited the Narsingi
¢ Shri RK. Tripathi, ¢ Court, visited the : for Urban Devel t o
i Additional Director, i Ahmedabad kitchen ; for Lrban Development, i kitchen
! Directorate of  Scarcity, Relief and
! Treasuries. Uttar 26 October i Rehabilitation, Uttar
! Pradesh, visited the i A team of delegates from the Pradesh, visited the
¢ Lucknow kitchen i James Percy Foundation UK ¢ Lucknow kitchen
and PATH Foundation © 27 November
VlSlt.ed the kitchen and FSQC : Mr Satya Pal Sinh Parmar,
¢ lab in Ahmedabad : .
i Tax Superintendent,
® 27 October visited the Bhavnagar
: Shri Anant Kumar Hegde,  kitchen, along with his
i Union Minister of State i team
for Skill Development and 30 November
Eltﬁpgir‘jﬁ EIEIE’ visited i Shri K.K. Sharma, Chief
- the Hubballl ktchen : Consultant, Technical
¢ 30 October i Support Group,
: Shri Suresh Passi, State : Mid-Day Meal Scheme,
i Minister for Housing, : Ministry of Human
i Vocational Education i Resource Development,
i and Skill Development, i visited the Nathdwara
i Uttar Pradesh, visited the : kitchen
¢ Lucknow kitchen

31
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e 6 March

: 16 Netherlands

{ Consuls to the United
Nations visited the

i Thane kitchen

e 15 March

i Ms Quince Chong
and Ms Vivian An, the
senior leadership team
i from CLP Holdings,
Hong Kong, and

i Mr Satish Chander,
representing senior

i leadership team of
HSBC, Hyderabad,

! visited the Narsingi
kitchen along with

! their respective teams
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* A scenic view of the backwaters in Alappuzha, Kerala. Akshaya Patra served the people of this region during the floods in'2018 - = ~___
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.............................................................................................................. For the Year Ended For the Year Ended Fiscal 2019

TRUSTEES' REPORT 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 Vs. 2018

Receipts & Payments Account

.............................................................................................................. . . . . Increase/
0, 0,
X (in lakhs) Y% of Receipts X (in lakhs) % of Receipts Decrease
Opening Balance 23,555.17 - 22,862.15 - 693.02
Receipts from:
Donations 31,795.71 59.63% 25,260.58 56.61% 6,535.13
CapEx Grant from the Government 1,001.84 1.88% - - 1,001.84
Subsidies 18,372.22 34.45% 17,820.87 39.94% 551.35
Others 2,152.86 4.04% 1,538.10 3.45% 614.76
Total Receipts (A) 53,322.63 100.00% 44,619.55 100.00% 8,703.08
Payments towards:
Investment in RBI Bonds and 1,315.13 2.47% 1,075.00 2.41% 240.13
To the stakeholders, Liquid Mutual Funds
i 0 0
Your Foundation’s Trustees are pleased to present the Annual Report of the 19th year Ryt elEEpeniinTe 42,171.99 [ 33,148.09 e 9,023.90
of the Foundation along with the audited accounts under Indian GAAP and IFRS for the Capital Expenditure 10,212.27 19.15% 9,448.55 21.18% 763.72
financial year that ended on 31 March, 2019. Others 62.05 0.12% 254.89 0.57% (192.84)
Total Payments (B) 53,761.44 100.83% 43,926.53 98.45% 9,834.91
E;‘Cifzstfsﬁc_;?ts Over (438.81) -0.83% 693.02 1.55% )
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE Y
Closing Balance 23,116.36 23,555.17 (438.80)
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended Fiscal 2019
Income & Expenditure Account 31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018 Vs. 2018 RESULT OF OPERATIONS
X (inlakhs)  %ofIncome X (inlakhs) % of Income % Increase / During the year, the Foundation's net income was ¥491.31 lakhs from operations. The income from donations
Decrease increased by 45.53% and Government support increased by 6.19%. However, due to the increase in cost of
Income From: materials by 24.64% and operating expenses by 30.29%, the net income decreased by 48.07%.
Donations 24,838.99 51.81% 17,067.76 43.70% 45.53% . . . . .
- During the FY, we added 8 new kitchens. Hence, the costs in the Income and Expenditure Account has increased.
Subsidies 21,732.74 45.33% 20,465.64 52.40% 6.19%
Others 1,372.74 2.86% 1,520.67 3.90% -9.73% Key reasons for the increase in the current year’s expenditure
Total Income 47,944.47 100.00% 39,054.07 100.00% 22.76%
. ] e Enhancement of food raw material content in the meals
Expenditure Towards: . S .. . . .
« Increase in personnel cost due to revision in minimum wages, opening of new kitchens, and kitchens
Materials and Utilities Consumed 24,617.13 51.35% 19,750.49 50.57% 24.64% under construction
Personnel Cost 12,659.04 26.40% 10,375.72 26.57% 22.01% » Increase in general and administrative expenses including distribution costs
Other Operating Expenses 8,569.17 17.87% 6,576.92 16.84% 30.29% . ¥ncre.as§ in 1zl.epll;eciation due to commencement of operations in new kitchens and capital expenditure
in existing kitchens
i i 0 0 ()
Total Operating Expenditure 45,845.34 95.62% 36,703.13 93.98% 24.91% « Operating expenses of kitchens under construction
Operating Results 2,099.13 4.38% 2,350.94 6.02% -10.71%
Non-Cash Income from 4,173.86 8.71% 2,794.90 7.16% 49.34% Plan for utilising the net income
Capital Domations T
Depreciation 5,781.68 12.06% 4,199.77 10.75% 37.67% o Meet the revenue expenditure of existing and upcoming new kitchens
Excess of Income Over Expenditure 491.31 1.03% 946.07 2.43% -48.07% + Strategic investments in capital expenditure

o Meet the plans to scale up in the near future while we continue to raise funds from donors to ensure
sustainability of our operations

» Enhance automation of processes, invest in Information Technology (IT), innovation, and Research and
Development (R&D) activities as we scale up operations

o Improve last-mile delivery, school ecosystems, and the meal experience

» Ensure a contingency fund for the sustenance and smooth running of operations
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INCOME

The total operating income recognised during 2018-19 increased to 3¥47,944.47 lakhs, representing a growth of
22.76% over the previous year. The growth in income is analysed below.

Subsidies from the Government

The incremental income from the Government during the year was 1,267.10 lakhs. This growth of 6.19% was due
to a 5% increase in the overall volume of meals served during the year and increase in cash subsidy rate towards the
Mid-Day Meal Programme sanctioned by the Government of India and the State Governments.

% (in lakhs)

-wi idi Share of Subsidy Income
?&;gzeri}i;ldles 201819 201718 2018-19 : 2017-18
Karnataka 7,266.58 7,224.16 33% 35%
Uttar Pradesh 2,718.07 2,508.10 13% 12%
Rajasthan 2,267.00 1,892.50 10% 9%
Odisha 1,747.47 1,618.29 8% 8%
Gujarat 4,215.34 4,145.64 20% 20%
Andhra Pradesh 639.23 538.02 3% 3%
Telangana 2,092.23 1,936.52 10% 10%
Chhattisgarh 258.97 267.77 1% 1%
Assam 305.87 310.31 1% 2%
Maharashtra 221.98 24.32 1% 0%
Total Subsidies (Cash & Grains) 21,732.74 20,465.63 100% 100%

Table 1: Analysis of Subsidies (Cash & Grains)

State-wise mid-day meal cash subsidy

The share of subsidies from Government AmountinX
of Karnataka and Government of Gujarat State 2018-19 201718
constitutes 53% of the total. Introduction PS UPS PS UPS
of Akshaya Patra's mid-day meal feeding in Karnataka 435 6.51 413 6.18
new locations in Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, desh
Andhra Pradesh, and Telangana contributed UHED IR 0 651 0 B
to the growth in Government subsidies. Rajasthan* 4.35 6.51 413 6.18

Gujarat 4.58 6.41 4.58 6.41
?(our Foun('iat1on comr.nenced operations il idais 5.02 6.81 478 6.48
in 8 new kitchens during the year and
the volume of meals from these kitchens Andhra Pradesh 4.35 6.51 4.13 6.18
constituted 2% of the overall meals volume Telangana 4.35 6.51 4.13 6.18
served during the year. Odisha 4.80 716 458  6.83
The present cash subsidy received from Assam 4.35 6.51 413 6.18
each State Government towards the
Mid-Day M?al Progra'lmme V'Vlth c'omparlson 2018-19 2017-18
to the previous year is provided in Table 2. Note*

PS UPS PS UPS

Table 2: State-wise Subsidy Per Meal
*We receive double subsidy Baran 8.7 13.02 8.26 13.02

PS - Primary School; UPS - Upper Primary School

The Government of India and State Governments continue to encourage and support Your Foundation. This has
provided immense strength to the Foundation to further contribute and increase the feeding volume to reach out
to more children in coming years. In FY 2019-20, Akshaya Patra will commence operations in 16 new kitchens, the
details of which are covered in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual Report.

INCOME FROM DONATIONS

The donation income is based on the revenue recognition policy of the Foundation and the policy is mentioned in
Schedule 1 (vi) of the Financial Statements.

Donation Income

é Feeding - Cash
£ B Feeding - in-Kind
g 24,676.18
16,904.90 Fixed Assets - Cash
Fixed Assets - in-Kind
162.86 ;692%3115
%"\70%'26 196.71
JL.07%F 1 Ca 8
2017-18 2018-19

Source: Income and Expenditure Account

DONATIONS RECEIVED

The chart below displays the total donations collected by the Foundation during the respective years. The overall
donations collected for Revenue Expenditure during the year to conduct the programmes increased by 36% over
the previous year, courtesy the generous contributions from individuals, corporates, trusts, and other foundations.
The capital donations collected during the year towards investment in fixed assets increased by 11% compared

to the previous year, for capacity enhancement, replacements in existing kitchens, and investment in upcoming
kitchens. In addition to donations, Akshaya Patra also received CapEx grant of X10 crores from the Government of
Uttar Pradesh for the construction of kitchens in the state.

Donations and Government CapEx Grant Received

1001.84
355.91
8,363.00 CapEx Grant from Government
- B Trust Fund Receipts
= 7,663.55
L; Donation for Fixed Assets
vt Donation for Feeding
17,120.69 23,076.80
2017-18 2018-19 Source: Receipts and Payments Account
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During the financial year, the Foundation received corpus donations of ¥352.78 lakhs with a specific mandate that
the funds form a part of the corpus of the Trust at all times.

% (in lakhs)
In-Kind Donations 2017-18 2018-19
Fixed Assets 92.64 196.71
Provisions & Groceries 84.09 85.78
Services 78.77 77.02
Total 255.50 359.51

Table 3: In-Kind Donations

OTHER INCOME

Other income of the Foundation comprises largely of interest earnings and other sources amounting to 31,372.74
lakhs during the year as against ¥1,520.67 lakhs the previous year.

REVENUE EXPENDITURE

The total revenue expenditure including depreciation during the year was ¥51,627.02 lakhs as compared to
%40,902.90 lakhs for the previous year. The break-up of the same is represented below.

Analysis of Revenue Expenditure

24.617.13 Materials and Utilities Consumed
g M Personnel Cost
= 19,750.49
£ Depreciation/Amortisation
e
Other Operating Expenses
12,659.04 PErating Sxp
5,781.68
4,199.77
6,576.92 8,569.17
2017-18 2018-19 Source: Income and Expenditure Account

During the year, the overall number of meals served increased by 5% from 3,265.18 lakhs to 3,437.69 lakhs.

The amount spent on materials and utilities increased by 25% during the year in comparison to the previous year.
This increase is due to the growth in meals volume, additional content in the meal, and increase in the cost of dairy

products, spices, vegetables, and other grocery items which are the major ingredients in the meals.

During the year, the cost of cooking fuel and utilities increased on a per meal basis from %0.45 to ¥0.54 and from
%0.18 to 0.20 respectively, due to the increase in input costs.

During the year, personnel costs increased from ¥3.18 per meal to 33.68 per meal over the previous year. The
increase is primarily due to the revision in minimum wages notified by the State Governments, increment to
employees, scaling-up of operations in some of the existing kitchens, and commencement of operations in 8 new
kitchens.

The cost of distribution of meals from our kitchens to the schools increased from ¥1.97 per meal to ¥2.28 per meal.

This is due to the addition in the number of schools, cost of fuel, and hired vehicles for kitchens. The Foundation
has spent 94% of the total expenditure on mid-day meal feeding, 5% on other feeding programmes, and 1% on
other programmes.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
During the financial year, the Foundation spent ¥10,331.82 lakhs on capital expenditure across all the branches,

including new kitchens that commenced operations and kitchens in construction phase.

Branch-wise Capital Expenditure

% (in lakhs)
Branch Capital Expenditure
Bhuj 897.88
Hyderabad 783.86
Silvassa 689.56
Vrindavan 577.56
Other Kitchens* 7,382.96
Total 10,331.82

Table 4: Branch-wise Capital Expenditure spends
*Individually less than %5 crore in each branch

Category-wise Capital Expenditure

% (in lakhs)
Asset Group Bhuj Hyderabad Silvassa  Vrindavan  Other Kitchens Total
Buildings & Civil Works 637.33 445.70 510.39 1.69 2,983.97 4,579.08
Kitchen & Related Equipment 216.19 176.65 128.21 231.61 2,210.85 2,963.51
Vehicles 0.65 32.69 0.61 282.15 932.50 1,248.60
Distribution Vessels 4.18 69.76 50.35 29.90 720.51 874.70
Other Assets 39.53 59.07 - 32.20 535.13 665.93
Grand Total 897.88 783.87 689.56 577.55 7,382.96 10,331.82

The Foundation will continue to invest in fixed assets to improve the infrastructure required to support growth in
the coming years. These investments have been possible due to the unwavering support of generous donors.
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CASH AND BANK BALANCES

The Foundation had a total of cash and bank balance of ¥23,116.36 lakhs as of 31 March, 2019, including fixed
deposits of ¥8,388.10 lakhs (refer Schedule 2.11 and 2.14).

Balances with banks comprise

* Subsidy collections from the Government for feeding programmes

e Ear-marked capital expenditure donation funds received for operating kitchens and for new kitchens
* Donation funds to meet the revenue expenditure in operations

RECEIVABLES

The total receivable from the Government as of 31 March, 2019, is ¥3,609.36 lakhs as compared to ¥2,929.10 lakhs
the previous year. This includes the unbilled cash subsidy of ¥1,871.24 lakhs as compared to ¥1,560.09 lakhs the
previous year. The cash subsidy income from the Government and Government bodies increased by 7.24% during
the year, while the outstanding receivables increased by 23.22% as compared to previous year.

During the four months ended 31 July, 2019, out of the above receivables, we have collected an amount of
%1,662.02 lakhs. The balance will be collected in the coming months.

As per the financial policy, provision for doubtful receivables of ¥58.19 lakhs had been made during the year in the
financial statements. Your Foundation is working with the concerned stakeholders for realisation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report, analysing the current performance and detailing the future
plans of the organisation, is presented in a separate section of this Annual Report (refer page number 83).

AWARDS AND ACCOLADES

During the year, the Foundation received recognition from various quarters. These have been covered in a separate
section of the Annual Report (refer page number 53).

TRANSPARENCY
The Foundation strives to ensure transparency in all spheres of its functions.
AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’ REPORT

All the branches as well as the Central Office are subjected to periodic internal audits. During the year, the
Foundation re-appointed Ernst & Young LLP, a reputed chartered accountant firm, to carry out the internal audits.
The framework adopted is effective risk management through comprehensive risk-based audits to enhance the
efficiency and effectiveness of the processes. The reports issued by the internal auditors are reviewed by the Audit
Committee through the audit department of the Foundation.

M/s BSR & Co, LLP, Chartered Accountants, Registration No. 101248W/W-100022, are the statutory auditors of
the Foundation. They have audited the financial statements that have been attached in the Annual Report and have
expressed an unqualified report which does not call for any further comments.

M/s KPMG are the independent auditors of the Foundation for the financial statements prepared under the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). They have audited the said financial statements and have
expressed an unqualified report which does not call for any further comments.

TRUST GOVERNANCE

The details of the Governance Philosophy and Governance Model of the Foundation have been covered in a
separate section of this Annual Report (refer page number 21).
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The Board also reviews the same and advises the management from time to time with their feedback/inputs.
Apart from this, additional board meetings are convened by providing appropriate notice to address the specific

needs of the Foundation. The members do not take any sitting fees from the Foundation.

The Board of Trustees met twice during the year. The details of Board meetings held during

FY 2018-19 are as under.

(A) Composition of the Board

The Foundation’s Board comprises eight Trustees, all having considerable experience in their respective fields.
The Board met twice during FY 2018-19.

. Number of Trustees
Location
Present
30 September, 2018 Bengaluru 7
27 January, 2019 Bengaluru 6

Table 6: Particulars of the Board Meetings

" _ ALRILICS I. AUDIT COMMITTEE
Name of the Trustee Age* Gender Position on Board Occupation Board Meetings
Attended ong . -

(A) Composition of the Audit Committee

Madhu Pandit Dasa 62 Male Chairman Missionary Volunteer 2 000

Chanchalapathi Dasa 56 Male Vice-Chairman Missionary Volunteer 2 Your Foundation has an Audit Committee at the Board level, which acts as a link between the management, the
Statutory and Branch Auditors, and the Board of Trustees. The Committee also oversees the financial reporting

Jaganmohan Krishna Dasa 41 Male Trustee Missionary Volunteer 2 process.

Ratnangada Govinda Dasa 45 Male Trustee Missionary Volunteer 2 e @ e e A e G e i ae Floues

. Chairman, Manipal Global
T.V. Mohandas Pai 60 Male Trustee Fducation Services 2 T sl e, e
) - ; ¢ Raj P. Kondur, Member
Abhay Jain 60 Male Trustee Advisor, Mampal Education 1 o Suresh Senapaty, Member
Medical Group
Founder & Chairman, Exfinity The Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Director - Internal Audit, and other senior
V. Balakrishnan 54 Male Trustee Venture Partners; Chairman, 1 officers of the Foundation are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee meetings. The internal auditors of the
Tejas Networks Foundation are also invited to the Audit Committee meetings as necessary.
Raj P. Kondur 48 Male Trustee CEO, Plank Labs 1 Suresh Senapaty

Table 5: Composition of the Board
*Age as of 31 July, 2019

(B) Profile of the Board Members
The detailed profile of the Board Members is included separately in the section ‘Board of Trustees’ of this Annual Report
(refer page number 23).

(C) Other Information Regarding the Board
Your Foundation’s Board of Trustees plays a primary role in ensuring its good governance and functioning. The Board’s roles,
functions, responsibilities, and accountabilities are defined.

The agenda and notes of each meeting of the Board of Trustees are circulated to the Trustees in advances. Where it is not
practical to attach or send the relevant information as a part of the agenda papers, the same is tabled at the meeting with
presentations to the Board. The members of the Board have complete freedom to express their opinion and the decisions are
taken after detailed discussions.

The Board periodically reviews the operations. The Foundation follows the system of submitting the monthly
financials to the Board of Trustees, providing them with updates on its performance and other important matters.
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Mr Senapaty is a former Chief Financial Officer of Wipro Ltd. and a member of its
Board. A Chartered Accountant, he initially worked with Lovelock and Lewes, a leading
CA firm. He is the Chairman of Honeywell Automation India Ltd. He is also a member
of the Boards of various companies, listed and non-listed, including International Tax
Research and Analysis Foundation (ITRAF). He has served as a member of many other
committees including NACAS, SCODA, and the IFRS Global Advisory Board.

A regular speaker at various seminars and forums, Mr Senapaty has won several
awards and accolades to his credit; most notable among these being the ‘Best CFO’
award in 2002 by IMA (an associate of the Economist Corporate Network), in
association with the American Express; the ‘Best CFO’ award for IT/ITES sector by
CNBC-TV 18; and the ‘CFO Wall of Fame’ by 9dot9 Mediaworx.

As a member of the Audit Committee of Akshaya Patra, Mr Senapaty has made
valuable contributions to the Foundation by advising the senior management on the
following:

» Strengthening good governance processes

« Improving risk management, internal controls, ethics, and compliance

o Quality and integrity of the accounting, auditing, and financial reporting practices
« Enhancing the independence of performance management
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(B) Meetings of the Audit Committee

During the year under review, the Audit Committee met thrice to deliberate on various matters. The details of the
composition and attendance are as follows.

Name of the Member Number of Meetings Attended
V. Balakrishnan 3
Raj P. Kondur 1
Suresh Senapaty 3

Table 7: Particulars of the Audit Committee Meetings

The Committee members do not take any sitting fees from the Foundation.

(C) Charter of the Audit Committee

The detailed charter of the Audit Committee can be availed from the Foundation’s website.

II. DISCLOSURES

(A) Basis of Related Party Transactions

The Foundation places all the relevant details before the Audit Committee periodically. Considering the nature of the
organisation as a Foundation, it has specifically identified the related parties which are trusts or societies having one
or more common Trustees.

A comprehensive list of related parties and the transactions held with them forms a part of Note No. 2.27 (a) of
Schedule 2 - Notes to Accounts of the financial statements under Indian GAAP. These transactions are not likely to
have any conflict with the interests of the Foundation at large and have been valued at an arm’s length.

(B) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment

In the absence of any authoritative established accounting principles for the specialised aspects related to charitable
trusts which do not carry out any commercial activity, the Foundation has prepared the financial statements in
accordance to the significant accounting policies described in Note 1.2 to Schedule 1 to the financial statements
prepared under the Indian GAAP.

The financial statements prepared by the Foundation under IFRS are in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, except for such modifications
as have been considered appropriate to reflect the objectives of the Foundation, i.e., carrying charitable activities
with effective use of resources rather than making profits and maximisation of members’ wealth.

(C) Trustees’ Responsibility

Your Trustees, based on the representations from the operating management, confirm that:

* In the preparation of the annual accounts, accounting policies described in Note 1.2 to Schedule 1 to the financial
statements prepared under the Indian GAAP have been followed and there are no material departures

* They have, in selection of the accounting policies, consulted the statutory auditors and applied these policies
consistently, making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Foundation as of 31 March, 2019, and of the income and expenditure of the Foundation
for the year ended 31 March, 2019

e They have taken proper and sufficient care, to the best of their knowledge and ability, for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records for safeguarding the assets of the Foundation and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities

e They have prepared the annual accounts on an on-going concern basis

(D) Remuneration of Trustees

The Trustees of the Foundation declare that they have not received any remuneration from the Foundation,
including for the year 2018-19. They have not received any sitting fees from the Foundation for the Board meetings
and Audit Committee meetings attended by them.

Total amount spent for travel and other expense reimbursements are indicated below.

Amount in 3
Sl. No. Name of the Trustee Domestic Travel International Travel = Total Amount Spent/Reimbursed
1. Chanchalapathi Dasa 407,505 27,828 435,333
2. Ratnangada Govinda Dasa 375,829 = 375,829
3. Jaganmohan Krishna Dasa 143,988 = 143,988
4, Madhu Pandit Dasa 45,449 = 45,449
Total 972,771 27,828 1,000,599

(E) Management

* The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of the Annual Report
o No material transaction has been entered into by the Foundation with the Trustees or the Management, their
relatives, etc., that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Foundation

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Trustees express their deep appreciation for all the support and co-operation received from the Ministry
of Human Resource Development (MHRD), Government of India, and all the State Governments during the year
under review.

We are deeply indebted and grateful to all our donors (corporates, trusts, foundations, and individuals) who have
generously contributed to our cause. Your efforts have empowered us to move from strength to strength. Your
motivation, dedication, and constant support gives us impetus to ameliorate the cause of food for education. Your
Trustees also wish to place on record their appreciation for the committed services done by the volunteers and
employees of the Foundation.

We will continue to be inspired by the vision that has been so far outlined and discussed. We hope that we will be
given multiple opportunities and avenues to serve the society at large and the stakeholders in specific.

For and on the behalf of the Board of Trustees,
Chanchalapathi Dasa

Vice-Chairman
Date: 12 September, 2019
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Head count in the Foundation as of 31 March, 2019

Particulars Male Female Total
Regular Employees 4,515 977 5,492
Contract 808 148 956
. Consultants 64 36 100
Details of Bank Balances (as of 31 March, 2019)
----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Self-Help Groups (SHGs) 37 1,141 1,178
Total 5,424 2,302 7,726
List of Banks Savings Account Fixed Deposits
(in lakhs) % (in lakhs) .
Gross remuneration per month of regular employees
YES Bank 5,249.58 1,345.54
Range Male Staff Female Staff Total
IndusInd Bank 3,140.53 1,563.17
: < 10,000 1346 364 1710
Kotak Mahindra Bank 2,369.64 115.50
; 10,001 - 25,000 2728 511 3239
Axis Bank Ltd. 2,175.57 133.77
. 25,001 - 50,000 299 68 367
State Bank of India 980.62 324.33
50,001 - 100,000 98 21 119
ICICI Bank 357.48 =
1 1 & ab 44 1
HDFC Bank 181.32 45.68 SLReEte > >
Total 4515 977 5492
Corporation Bank 160.54 10.46
Equitas Small Finance Bank 103.83 45.00 Average Salary: ¥16,489.00; Median Salary: ¥11,837
IDFC First Bank 0.27 232.33 . .
Remuneration of the Least Paid Staff Members
Vijaya Bank - 121.31
Other Banks 750 161.66 %6260.00 (as Per the then M}mmum Wages in the respt?ctlve Sta.lte Governr.nent Minimum Wage Notification).
Apart from this, the Foundation also adheres to the Social Security Regulations.
Total (A) 14,726.88 4,098.75
Total cost of international travel by all personnel including Board members
Financial Institutions Name Designation % (in lakhs) %
HDFC Ltd. - 4,134.18 Shridhar Venkat CEO 6.95 49%
PNB Housing Finance Ltd. - 155.17 Sundeep Talwar CMO 3.14 22%
Total (B) - 4,289.35 Naveena Neerada Dasa  Head - Global Engagement Initiatives 2.54 18%
GRAND TOTAL (A+B) 14,726.88 8,388.10 Shailvi Shah Asst. Manager - Policy & Advocacy 0.97 7%
Prahalada Dasa Consultant 0.45 3%
Chanchalapathi Dasa Vice-Chairman 0.28 1%
Total 14.33 100%

Domestic travel cost by all personnel

Mode of Travel % (in lakhs)
Air 206.73
Others 151.82
Total 358.55

Source: Notes to Accounts

47 ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19



An MoU was signed between
Akshaya Patra and Nutrition
International (NI) for food
fortification
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* 3 JUNE, 2018

The volunteering arm of
Akshaya Patra - ATIKYA,
launched ‘Namma
Bengaluru, Hasiru
Bengaluru), a tree plantation
and distribution drive, in
commemoration of World

Environment Day * 17 JULY, 2018

A Mid-Day Meal Programme
was launched at the
Government First Grade
Women’s College, Balmatta,
Mangaluru

A round-table conference was
conducted by Akshaya Patra
on ‘Strengthening MDM -
Building a Cogent School Meal
Programme’. It was attended
by eminent dignitaries from
various reputed institutes and
organisations

* 9 AUGUST, 2018

‘The First Learners’, a
documentary by Akshaya
Patra exploring the life of
school-going tribal children in
QOdisha, was released to mark
the International Day of the
World's Indigenous Peoples

‘School and Student
Transformation - A Model

School Initiative’ was
launched by the Maharaja
of Mysuru, His Highness
Yaduveer Krishnadatta
Chamaraja Wadiyar, at
the Government Lower
Primary School (GLPS),
Ravindranagar, Bengaluru
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¢ 12-13 JANUARY, 2019

Akshaya Patra organised a
two-day campaign called
‘Outride Hunger’ in Mumbai,
to create awareness and
mobilise support for the
Mid-Day Meal Programme

Akshaya Patra participated

as one of the exhibitors at
‘International Trade Fair for
Organics And Millets 2019;,
sharing findings on pilot
methodology and knowledge
on impact of millets on health

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

Launching of B
‘'or Boad Tg

A breakfast programme was
launched in Shoolagiri and
Thally, Tamil Nadu, for 7,800
students in association with
Ashok Leyland

¢ 11 FEBRUARY, 2019

The serving of Akshaya Patra’s
third billionth cumulative meal
was commemorated in the
presence of the Hon’ble Prime
Minister Shri Narendra Modi
and the Hon’ble Chief Minister
of Uttar Pradesh, Shri Yogi
Adityanath

The Hon’ble Governor of
Tamil Nadu, Shri Banwarilal
Purohit inaugurated ‘Kaalai
Unavu Thittam’, a breakfast
programme for 1,000 school
children in Chennai, Tamil
Nadu

e 2 MARCH, 2019

‘Yogathon’, a mass yoga event,
was organised in Bengaluru,
in collaboration with

Cure.fit and Reebok; attended
by 1,500 enthusiasts
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i 19 April, 2018

Maht kitchen inaugurated with a feeding capacity of 10,000
meals per day for 250 schools of Maht Tehsil, Uttar Pradesh,
¢ with the support of Damani Foundation

i ® 23 April, 2018

Inaugurated a centralised kitchen in Bhilwara, Rajasthan,

: supported by the Rural Electrification Corporation (REC)

! Limited (a Navratna enterprise of the Government of India)

i « 2 May, 2018

i Akshaya Patra’s kitchen in Kandi, Telangana, began feeding
: operations. This state-of-the-art kitchen was established

¢ with the support of the Infosys Foundation

i » 8 May, 2018

: Inaugurated a kitchen in Jhalawar, Rajasthan, with the
support of Dharampal Satypal Limited. The kitchen has an
i operational capacity of approximately 44,000 meals

i » 15 October, 2018

Inaugurated a kitchen with a feeding capacity of 30,000
meals in Udaipur, Rajasthan, with the support of HT

¢ Parekh Foundation

. * November, 2018
i Launched a kitchen with a feeding capacity of 5,000 meals
i for Anganwadi feeding in Gudivada, Andhra Pradesh

. * January, 2019
i Launched a kitchen with a capacity of 25,000 meals in
i Kuppam, Andhra Pradesh

¢ © 19 January, 2019

Inaugurated a kitchen in Bhuj, Gujarat, with the support
of Sarva Mangal Family Trust and Balkrishna Industries
¢ Limited

i * 4 February, 2019

Honourable Cabinet Minister of Rajasthan, Dr. B.D. Kalla
inaugurated a kitchen in Bikaner, in the presence of

Shri Govind Singh Dotasara, Education Minister,
Government of Rajasthan; Shri Bhanwar Singh Bhati,

i Higher Education Minister, Government of Rajasthan; and
representatives of the district administration. This kitchen is
i supported by Chandak Group

o
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We have 1.8 million
reasons to do
what we are doing!
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U8R TIMES
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* The Gandhi Peace Prize 2016 was conferred upon Akshaya Patra by the Hon’ble President of India, Shri Ram Nath Kovind,
for providing mid-day meals to children across India. The jury members comprised of the Hon’ble Prime Minister of India,
Shri Narendra Modi and other eminent personalities

e Honoured with the ICAI Gold Shield Award for ‘Excellence in Financial Reporting’ for the year 2017-18 in the Not-for-Profit
Sector for the 7th time in a row, to become the only NGO in the 70-year history of ICAI that has won this distinction

e Shri Madhu Pandit Dasa was honoured with the first National Living Legend Award 2018 presented by the Odisha Diary
Foundation

¢ Akshaya Patra’s Annual Report 2017-18 ‘Aspire’ won the Platinum Award in the LACP 2017/18 Vision Awards.
It ranked 17th amongst the top 100 Annual Reports in the world

¢ Awarded Platinum for Annual Report 2017-18 and Calendar 2019, and Gold for ‘Essence of Akshaya Patra’ brochure at the
Hermes Creative Awards 2019
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In FY 2018-19, The Akshaya Patra Foundation took significant
strides to further its partnerships, adding 8 new kitchens with
the support of donor partners, such as the Rural Electrification
Corporation (REC) Limited (a Navratna enterprise of the
Government of India), Damani Foundation, Dharampal Satypal
Limited, Sarva Mangal Family Trust, Balkrishna Industries
Limited, HT Parekh Foundation, and the Chandak Group.

Furthermore, scaling up its reach to nourish more children
across the nation, the Foundation signed MoUs for a total

of 6 kitchens across India. The donor partners for these
kitchens include Concentrix, The Hans Foundation, ABB India
Foundation, New India Assurance, CLP Wind Farms, and
Airports Authority of India.

The constant support from the Infosys Foundation and TATA
Trusts continues to play a crucial role in Akshaya Patra’s
endeavours.

The year was significant for the organisation’s nutrition
intervention with GlaxoSmithKline in the Hubballi-Dharwad
area, which was set in motion in 2017. The intervention has
seen significant momentum and presently benefits 50,000
children in 411 schools.

Bengaluru’s cream of the crop banded together to fuel the
cause of ‘Food for Education), as 171 high-stationed individuals
helped raise %1.36 crores as revenue expenditure (RevEx)

for our Puducherry kitchen. Facilitated by Dinesh Malkani,
Founder and CEO, Smarten Spaces, and Shalini Malkani, the
endeavour, titled ‘Project Hunger’, organised several charity
fundraisers. It witnessed active participation from members,
which led to the collection of a sizeable amount of funds for the
kitchen.

In FY 2018-19, Akshaya Patra’s collaborative efforts extended
to its other feeding initiatives in addition to the Mid-Day
Meal (MDM) Programme. Most notable among these was the
breakfast initiative with Ashok Leyland, benefitting 7,800
children in and around Hosur. Beneficiary children were
treated to Milk Bikis Good Morning biscuits from Britannia
Industries and cookies from Café Coffee Day through their
‘Donate a Cookie’ initiative.

Gathering support for its relief feeding efforts in
flood-affected Kerala in 2018, the Foundation launched
digital campaigns to raise funds and joined hands

with multiple corporate partners, including Cisco,
Zomato, Hero, and Sun Life. A team of 30 Akshaya Patra
employees cooked and distributed meals (including
breakfast, lunch, and dinner) along with drinking water
in Alappuzha and Chengannur. The organisation set

up two makeshift kitchens in these locations which
prepared and distributed 7,000-10,000 meals every
day. Akshaya Patra also provided 6,000 school bag kits,
including notebooks and compass boxes, for the benefit
of school-going children in these locations.

During the National Nutrition Month, Akshaya Patra
started an outreach campaign, urging citizens to sign
pledge cards resolving to prevent food wastage and
support underserved citizens by feeding them. Over

1 lakh signed pledge cards were sent to the Prime
Minister’s Office (PMO), urging the Hon’ble Prime
Minister of India, Shri Narendra Modj, to speak about
the issue in his ‘Mann Ki Baat’ address to the nation.

Taking a step forward to strengthen the sustainability of
its school feeding programme, the Foundation launched
‘i-TREAT - The Do Good Card’ initiative through

The Akshaya Nidhi Foundation.

The volunteering events included a range of activities,
such as the making of paper pens, clay Ganesha, and
greeting cards for the kitchen staff. A total of 15,593
volunteers from 70 corporate entities dedicated their
time and support for 87 activities, clocking a total of
93,714 volunteering hours.

Akshaya Patra greatly cherishes its donors and
acknowledges that it is their support that empowers the
Foundation’s journey to nourish India’s children.
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eficiaries of Akshaya Patra’SAnganwadi feeding initiative in Rajasthan




Akshaya Patra’s role as a food and nutrition provider for
nearly two decades has enabled it to garner significant
knowledge and experience. The Foundation is deeply rooted
in its service to the children of India. In addition to serving
children, Akshaya Patra is constantly striving to harness

its capabilities to reach and serve more people across the
spectrum of society.

The organisation has been implementing other feeding
initiatives that serve people from various age groups,
regions, and communities. Ranging from feeding women
who are in the early stages of motherhood to providing
meals to the public at very nominal prices, these initiatives
are paving Akshaya Patra’s path towards social welfare.

Expanding its scope within the area of child nutrition, the
Foundation has also started feeding breakfast to
school-going children in Chennai. In London, Akshaya
Patra UK recently began serving food to children during
the summer holidays and to rough-sleepers on the streets
throughout the year.

The Foundation is diversifying its endeavours to improve
access to healthy and nutritious food for the underserved
communities. Akshaya Patra aspires to enable better
nutritional status among these sections, contributing to the
vision of healthier populations.

Feeding in Anganwadi Centres

One of the essential forms of nurture is the nourishment that
a mother provides to her newborn. Prenatal and postnatal
care is vital for both, the mother and the child. The intake of
proper nutrition is a significant contributor to good health for
pregnant women, nursing mothers, and their infants. On the
other hand, malnutrition in a mother has a direct impact on
the infant - it can be intergenerational.

Anganwadi Centres (AWCs) established under the umbrella of
the Integrated Child Development Services (ICDS) are central
to tackling the issue of intergenerational malnutrition. One

of the primary goals of setting up AWCs is to improve the
nutritional intake and therefore, the health of children from
birth to age six, and pregnant women and nursing mothers.
Such an intervention that improves access to nutrition and
healthcare for its intended beneficiaries is vital.

Akshaya Patra strongly supports this extensive programme
for maternal and infant care by the Government of India.

To aid the Government’s efforts, Akshaya Patra provides
nutritious meals to beneficiaries through Anganwadi Centres
in Gujarat, Rajasthan, Uttar Pradesh, Andhra Pradesh, and
Telangana.

The Foundation currently serves meals to beneficiaries in
3,170 AWCs. Akshaya Patra hopes to continue its services in
Anganwadi Centres for better nutritional intake and good
health of mothers and children.

* Breakfast Feeding - Chennai
Breakfast is often referred to as the most important meal of
the day. For children particularly, eating a tasty and healthy
breakfast can give them a lively start to the school day. It
can also improve concentration, increase energy, and lead
to healthier body weight. Considering that breakfast is
such an essential meal for overall growth and development
of children, Akshaya Patra has launched a breakfast
programme.

Currently, the Foundation provides breakfast to 5,000
children in Chennai and aims to reach 20,000 children in
the next academic year. Akshaya Patra is directing its efforts
towards scaling the breakfast initiative to reach

1 lakh children over the next three years. It looks forward
to introducing this initiative in various states to further the
nutritional status of children.

Akshaya Kalewa Programme

The working class is often perceived as the force that
keeps the country’s wheels moving every day. Their
day-to-day work involves an immense expenditure of
physical energy. Therefore, food plays a particularly
important role in their lives. Adequate access to freshly
cooked meals at affordable prices can go a long way in
their sustenance. Akshaya Patra attempts to address this
need through the Akshaya Kalewa programme.

Launched in collaboration with the Government of
Rajasthan, Akshaya Kalewa serves hot, cooked meals

to the public at nominal rates. The beneficiaries of this
programme mostly comprise the working class, including
daily wagers, rickshaw pullers, and factory workers.

Mobile units of Akshaya Patra are stationed at various
locations within a city to feed the public. On average,

the Akshaya Kalewa programme serves 8,000 meals per
day. To meet the general preferences of the beneficiaries,
Akshaya Patra collects feedback from them frequently and
adopts measures to satisfy their tastes.
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Akshaya Kalewa is currently implemented in Jaipur and
Ajmer. In addition to the support that the programme
receives from the Government, sponsorships from
donors have enabled 15 Akshaya Kalewa units to serve
food free of cost to its beneficiaries. With the progress of
time and unrelenting support from our stakeholders, the
Foundation aspires to serve freshly cooked meals to more
citizens through programmes such as Akshaya Kalewa.




¢ Feeding Initiative in the UK
Akshaya Patra UK started serving school-going children during
the summer holidays in 2017 at the London borough of Brent.

In the UK, many children are at risk of hunger and
malnourishment during the holidays. School holidays can add
an expense of nearly £30-£40 a week, which can particularly
overburden low-income households. Intending to prevent the
deterioration of physical and cognitive health among
school-going children, Akshaya Patra has recently started
providing meals to children every day during the holidays.
Freshly cooked meals are also served to college students,
allowing them more time for academics, rather than part-time
jobs to sustain their daily expenses.

The Foundation also began serving rough-sleepers in
London in 2017. On average, 3000 rough-sleepers and
food insecure people are served cooked meals on the
streets of Central London across six locations.

Akshaya Patra UK will continue to design programmes
that address the issue of holiday hunger among children
while simultaneously feeding the rough-sleepers,

food insecure, and other underserved groups. The
Foundation aims to open a large kitchen within the next
year to serve more people in London.
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Akshaya Patra’s Relief Efforts

Natural calamities can gravely disrupt people’s everyday life.
Access to necessities such as food can be suddenly interrupted
for those who are affected by these calamities. When such
adversity strikes a nation, its Government and people come
together to provide aid and assistance to those affected. To
support these efforts and bring some respite to people affected
by these circumstances, Akshaya Patra has come forward time
after time for disaster relief work across the country over the
years.

During the Kerala floods in 2018, Akshaya Patra carried out
relief efforts in the regions of Alappuzha and Chengannur.
Over 100,000 meals inclusive of breakfast, lunch, and dinner
were provided to those affected. When Kodagu, Karnataka, was
simultaneously ravaged by floods, the Foundation served over
13,000 meals to people there in one week.

As a part of relief efforts in Gorakhpur, Uttar Pradesh, in
2017, Akshaya Patra served over 1 lakh meals in the flood-
affected areas. A cumulative 212,000 meals were served by
the Foundation when floods hit the state of Tamil Nadu in
December 2015.

Akshaya Patra’s relief feeding efforts have even crossed borders.
In the aftermath of the Nepal earthquake in April 2015, a

relief kitchen was set up in collaboration with Tata Trusts and
Sipradian Sahayata Sanstha (SSS) in Bhaktapur, Nepal. Akshaya
Patra served approximately 1.4 million meals over 88 days.
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The Foundation will always strive to put its best foot
forward to assist the Government’s efforts to restore
stability in the lives of those affected by natural
calamities. As an organisation that has been producing
and serving meals on a large-scale for years together,
Akshaya Patra is enhancing its capacity to contribute to
such efforts across the country.

Serving with Care

Akshaya Patra is an organisation that greatly values
service to the people. In Bengaluru, Karnataka, Akshaya
Patra serves meals to over 450 homeless citizens.
Additionally, the Foundation serves food to widows
through its ‘Meals for Mothers’ initiative. Currently, this
initiative is implemented in Vrindavan, Uttar Pradesh,
serving over 900 beneficiaries. By serving nutritious
meals to these women, the Foundation aspires to
contribute to their well-being and quality of life.

The organisation has enthusiastically assisted the
Government’s efforts not only in child and community
welfare but also when there has been a need to serve
food to the masses. During the Kumbh Mela earlier
this year, Akshaya Patra offered its mobile kitchens -
‘Kitchen on Wheels’ - for feeding the pilgrims.

Through innovation in the realm of food and nutrition,
the organisation is taking measured and determined
steps towards social welfare. Learning continually
through the progress of time and motivated to create
greater impact, the Foundation will strive to expand

its reach to all sections of society through its diverse
initiatives. Akshaya Patra hopes to continue serving the
society to ensure a bright future for India and the world.
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The happiness and well-being of our
beneficiaries are of utmost value to us. Here
are a few testimonials from our beneficiaries,
giving you a glimpse of the motivation that
drives all our endeavours.
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“It is a blessing that Akshaya Patra serves
food in Momeen's school. It assures that he
gets at least one proper meal every day.”

.................. ©ecccccc00c000000000000000 o

Rihaana Begum

Rihaana’s son, Momeen, studies in
Rajkiya Uchcha Prathmik Vidyalaya in
Bhavgarh Bhandya, Jaipur

“We were a little concerned about how
they (Akshaya Patra volunteers) will
manage to feed so many of us. I even
brought together some volunteers to
help them when they arrived. We didn’t
know whether the food will be good ...
whether it will be like the food we are
used to. However, we were genuinely
surprised when we had the food. The
Akshaya Patra team supported us so
much, took great care of us, and fed
us good food in the middle of this
adversity.”

.................. ©ecccccc00c000000000000000 o

Shyamala Rajan

Shyamala is a beneficiary of Akshaya Patra’s flood
relief feeding in Alappuzha during the 2018 Kerala
floods

“I like the mid-day meals served in our
school. We get to eat different dishes
every day. The best part is that I sit with
all my friends and together, we eat this
tasty food every afternoon. Everyone has
their preference; I like dal-chawal the
most.”

.................. ©0cccccc0c0c000000000000000 o

Lakhan Ramesh Sadhu

Lakhan is a mid-day meal beneficiary from Shri
Baba Amte School in Surat, Gujarat

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

“I am very thankful that the Great
India Talent School and Akshaya Patra
provide lunch to children. It ensures
that my three children get at least one
nutritious meal every day.”

Bandirung Reang

Bandirung’s three children — Armstrong,
Orbilchandiram, and Selina study in the Great
India Talent School in Kashirampara, Tripura
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“My son Aarush is two years old now.

I received food from Anganwadi
throughout my pregnancy and later
during the nursing phase. It was very
helpful. We recently enrolled Aarush at
the Anganwadi, where he is looked after
and fed well”

.................. ©0cccccc00c000000000000000 o

Roshanadevi

Roshanadevi and her son, Aarush, are Akshaya
Patra Anganwadi feeding beneficiaries from Jaipur

“At school, we learn new things every
day. We also get to eat good food, such
as matar-paneer, rice, and dalma. Most
important of all, I get to participate in
sports.”

.................. ©0cccccc0cc000000000000000 o

Gobinda Marandy

Gobinda is a mid-day meal beneficiary from
Nankar Nodal Upper Primary School in Cuttack,
Odisha

“Ours is a joint family with thirteen
members. I started coming to the
Anganwadi since the initial stage of my
pregnancy. I got better care and nutritious
food here which was a blessing for my child
and me. My daughter, Harshali, is 2 years
old now. She also enjoys the food Akshaya
Patra serves here.”

.................. ©0c0cc00c00c000000000000000 o

Hiran
Hiran and her daughter, Harshali, are Akshaya Patra
Anganwadi feeding beneficiaries from Jaipur
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“When they (Akshaya Patra volunteers)
came here, they sat with us and enquired
about our local palette. They made an
effort to understand what kind of dishes
we are used to eating and prepared meals
accordingly. They were very loving and
took care of all of us like we were part of
their own families.”

.................. ©0cccccc0cc000000000000000 o

Sicy Thomas

Sicy is a beneficiary of Akshaya Patra’s flood relief
feeding in Alappuzha during the 2018 Kerala floods
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“I am unable to find work as I can’t do
physical labour due to a health condition.
For months, I have been coming here to
collect Akshaya Kalewa food for myself
and my father. The van always arrives on
time and provides delicious food.”

.............................. eeccccccccccce o

Lokesh

Lokesh is an Akshaya Kalewa beneficiary
from Jaipur

“We will never forget how Akshaya Patra
helped us in our difficult times. They
were very loving and took care of all of
us by providing food despite heavy rain
and flooding.”

.............................. ©eccccccccccce o

Sajitha Justin and Sindhu Peter

Sajitha and Sindhu are beneficiaries of
Akshaya Patra’s flood relief feeding in
Alappuzha during the 2018 Kerala floods

“A few years ago, I noticed a van

come and serve food to people. Out

of curiosity, I went to check. It was

an Akshaya Patra delivery van. They
served me food with their own hands,
which was very thoughtful. The food
was excellent and I have been eating it
regularly. I think they are good people
because they provide food for everyone.
I have even seen them serve free food to
the homeless.”

.............................. eeccccccccccce o

Bhagwan Singh

Bhagwan is an Akshaya Kalewa beneficiary from
Jaipur
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“We are happy that Sanju gets nutritious
food at school. When she returns from
school, she tells me about her day. She
tells me what she did at the school, what
she had for lunch, and what she liked. Dal,
roti, and rice are her favourite.”

.............................. ©eccccccccccce o

Kiran Kanwar

Kiran’s daughter, Sanju, studies in
Rajkiya Madhyamik Vidyalaya in Saankh, Jaipur

70



Akshaya Patra has strived continuously to serve people, especially in times of
need such as natural calamities. Here are a few glimpses of our relief feeding
efforts in various affected areas over the past few years.

--------------

A joint initiative was undertaken
by Akshaya Patra, Tata Trust,

and Sipradian Sahayata Sanstha
which served 1.4 million meals for
88 days to those affected by the
earthquake in Nepal.

A cumulative 212,000 meals were
served by the Foundation when
floods hit the state of Tamil Nadu.
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2017: Gujarat
Akshaya Patra served approximately

400,000 theplas in six days during ; ;
the floods in Gujarat. During the floods in Gorakhpur,
around 84,200 rice-based meals

and 192,000 theplas were served
to the survivors by Akshaya Patra.

.....................................

Akshaya Patra carried out relief
efforts in the regions of Alappuzha
and Chengannur during the 2018
Kerala floods. Over 100,000 meals
inclusive of breakfast, lunch, and

dinner were provided to those Over 13,000 meals were served in one
affected. week to people affected by the floods
in Kodagu.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19 72



73

The Akshaya Patra Foundation, through its school
feeding programme’s nutrition initiatives, is committed
to addressing hunger, promoting education, and steering
towards specific Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

The organisation believes that adequate nutrition
enhances cumulative lifelong learning capacities and
human productivity. Additionally, investing in child
nutrition is widely acknowledged as one of the most
effective entry points for human development. Akshaya
Patra has worked in this direction as it provides hot, safe,
tasty, and nutritious meals through its Mid-Day Meal
(MDM) Programme. The Programme safeguards food
and nutrition security for children by striving to provide
at least one-third of the daily Recommended Dietary
Allowance (RDA) of nutrients for their sustainable growth
and development.

Akshaya Patra identifies schools as a point of nutrition
delivery as well as an anchor for holistic community
development initiatives. The school ecosystem presents

an opportunity for integrated knowledge delivery in the
domains of nutrition, education, health, good eating habits,
personal hygiene, community development, community
empowerment, and environmental sustainability. The
organisation has embedded its efforts in programme
research into the mainstream feeding programme to
strengthen its impact.

At the core of Akshaya Patra’s menu design is nutritional
compliance. Akshaya Patra takes necessary measures to
ensure that the nutritional value of the menu adheres to
the nutrition compliance norms of the Ministry of Human
Resource Development (MHRD), Government of India. The
Foundation’s standardised recipes are focused on nutrients
which are essential for the overall development of children.

Menu diversity is ensured by including a wide variety

of seasonal vegetables and locally available ingredients

in the preparation of meals. The menu is planned and
implemented ensuring a combination of varied forms of
flavoursome food items and quality nutrients. In order to
avoid menu fatigue among children, the planned menu
focuses on a cyclic approach with local food preferences
and seasonal food availability.

Regional suitability is achieved through careful

menu planning, which, in turn, is done taking into
consideration the local food preferences. Furthermore,
regular feedback obtained from children, parents, and
teachers is used to determine the relevance of food
items on the menu. Besides helping in maintaining the
regional suitability, this practice also helps in adhering
to local food habits. To cite a few examples, the menu
in Karnataka comprises locally preferred dishes such as
bisibelebath, lemon rice, and pulliyogre. In Gujarat dal
khichdi and thepla are part of the menu. Similarly, in the
state of Odisha, dalma is a significant part of the menu,
aligning with local acceptability.

With a focus on enhancing the taste, Akshaya Patra

uses locally procured fresh spices and condiments. The
menu ensures a range of flavours through a variety of
spices, condiments, vegetables, and staple groups. It is
carefully designed to keep food choices interesting, add
different tastes and textures to the food, and ensure local
acceptance.

Akshaya Patra’s menu, as part of its nutrition initiatives,
works as a catalyst to provide complete nutrition for

all the significant biological and cognitive changes

that a child undergoes during various stages of

growth. Akshaya Patra also makes concerted efforts to
support and facilitate schools to create and maintain

an environment that is conducive for the optimum
development of children, communities, and the school
itself.
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5-6 YEARS

Akshaya Patra's Contribution to a Child's Growth and Development through its

Balanced, Nutritious, Hot, and Safe Meals

COGNITIVE SKILLS

Develops simple problem-solving ability

Understands the concept of time

Improved fine and gross motor development

Reads words and simple sentences

Improved co-ordination

BIOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENT

Significant increase in muscle mass

Permanent dentition may begin to erupt

............................................................................................................................................................

Well developed hand-eye co-ordination

Improved sense of balance

Good memorising and recalling skills

............................................................................................................................................................

Shows more control over their emotions

Enhanced analytical skills

Shows understanding of complex issues

Matured language skills

Muscles of the eye become stronger

Development of secondary sexual characteristics

............................................................................................................................................................

Increased attention span

Develops logical thinking

Masters complex gross and fine motor skills

Physiological changes at puberty

Growth spurt in girls

............................................................................................................................................................

Fair problem-solving skills

Develops abstract thinking skills

Rapid growth due to growth spurt in boys

Muscle development

Changes in physical appearance

............................................................................................................................................................

I

15-16 YEARS
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Exhibits defined work habits

Muscle growth continues
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In recent years, Akshaya Patra has designed and implemented a few initiatives to provide a milieu for
the holistic development of children and enhance the impact of its school meal programme. Through
these initiatives, the Foundation aims to offer beneficiaries with a better learning environment and
give them a range of opportunities to grow. Akshaya Patra aspires to initiate transformation in the
lives of children and their communities for a more hopeful tomorrow.

Giving Every Dream a Chance

This initiative was conceived with a vision to

identify, nurture, and support the unique dreams

of beneficiary children. The organisation hopes 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19
to be a part of building a nation of talented and 3 300 2 y 644
confident individuals by empowering beneficiaries

who have unique talents.

In 2019-20, Akshaya Patra looks forward to focus on robotics, space education, and spoken English through theatre for over
1000 beneficiaries. Further, the organisation aims to provide one-on-one mentorship to 25 children.

School Rejuvenation Programme

Akshaya Patra’s school rejuvenation programme based on
the Government’s Model School Scheme was launched to
rejuvenate schools and enrich the learning environment
for children. Through infrastructural improvements, the
introduction of digitisation in teaching methods, and
workshops for beneficiaries and school staff, this initiative
aims to enhance the quality of education in schools.

‘Avsar’: Scholarship Programme

This programme aims to nurture the aspirations
of meritorious children who want to pursue higher
education.

‘AIKYA'’ is the youth volunteering arm of Akshaya Patra,
consisting of a team of highly motivated young individuals

who are committed to working for a social cause. They are
driven to undertake projects that focus on social responsibility

and social innovation. Volunteers of AIKYA are the human
resource behind the implementation of the National
Endeavour for School Transformation initiatives.

2018-19 2019-20
1 35
SCHOOL SCHOOLS

2018-19 ) 2019-20
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SCHOLARS SCHOLARS SCHOLARSHIPS

2018-19

10,000

VOLUNTEERS



. Future Plans

'l%igric Organisation

- ; m‘

] ._..._u r

H TR




The Akshaya Patra Foundation, through its systematic
efforts, is constantly evolving, It is moving towards the
2030 Agenda for global sustainable development set by
the United Nations. The organisation is aligning its overall
strategic approach towards achieving the UN Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs).

Alongside contributing to SDG 2 - Zero Hunger, SDG

4 - Quality Education, and SDG 5 - Gender Equality
through the Mid-Day Meal (MDM) Programme, Akshaya
Patra is meticulously designing and implementing its
upcoming interventions to contribute towards many
more SDGs.

Akshaya Patra envisions to achieve this using an
integrated approach that operates through convergence
of programmes and initiatives. Few such initiatives are its
National Endeavour for School Transformation, including
the school rejuvenation programme, Giving Every Dream
a Chance, skill-building programme for MDM workers,
women, and the youth, community feeding, and youth
involvement.

To expedite this approach, Akshaya Patra constantly
deliberates with experts, policy makers, and communities.
The objective is to work towards the holistic development of
communities and to contribute to the realisation of SDGs.

Children have always been at the heart of Akshaya Patra’s
school lunch programme and going forward, they will
continue to be the biggest influencers of the Foundation’s
organisational decisions. For instance, the organisation is
working on a system of multi-stage sensory evaluation of
food by children.

With the expertise of operating the world’s largest NGO-run
MDM Programme and a new strategic direction, Akshaya
Patra is set to exponentially enhance its impact for the
welfare of children, families, communities, and the country.

eeccccccccce

eeccccccscsccccscccccccce

The organisation

is aligning its
overall strategic
approach towards
achieving the

UN Sustainable
Development
Goals.
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» In FY 2019-20, Akshaya Patra will begin
operations of 16 new kitchens, reaching out to
more children with nutritious mid-day meals
and contributing to the nation’s pursuit of two
critical Sustainable Development Goals - Zero
Hunger and Quality Education

o Akshaya Patra will conduct capacity-building
programmes for Mid-Day Meal (MDM) helpers,
training them in food safety, food handling, and
sanitation and hygiene best practices, to enhance
the programme. Through this endeavour, the
Foundation will also strive to empower women,
thus contributing to the nation’s pursuit of SDG
5 - Gender Equality

¢ The organisation aims to scale the breakfast
initiative to 20,000 children in the next
academic year. This will address short-
term hunger among children and improve
their concentration level, thus making the
morning sessions in schools significantly more
productive

» The Foundation will continue to establish
strategic partnerships with various institutions,
organisations, and agencies to find sustainable
solutions for the long-standing challenges faced
by society

The Foundation plans to set up at least two
community-based kitchens to boost the
school and community ownership of the
MDM Programme. The community will be
the key advisor and stakeholder to design and
monitor the Programme

The Foundation will scale its school rejuvenation
programme in partnership with the State
Governments to improve the long-term
comprehensive impact on schools; ergo, the
impact of the meals served. Over the next

year, 35 schools across four locations will be
transformed as a part of this initiative

Akshaya Patra will advocate for the convergence
of the Mid-Day Meal Programme with other
Government programmes, such as the
Integrated Child Development Services (ICDS)
and Jal Shakti Abhiyan, to address malnutrition
more effectively

AIKYA, the volunteer-based youth wing of
Akshaya Patra, will work with 15,000 more
volunteers to sustain and scale the community
mobilisation efforts

Akshaya Patra will encourage and develop 100
leaders from within the organisation to keep
pace with the rapidly changing environment in
the social sector and enhance its programmes

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19
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child is
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OVERVIEW

The main objectives of the Mid-Day Meal (MDM) Scheme are to address classroom hunger and malnutrition, increase
enrolment, attendance, and retention in schools, as well as improve social equity and empower women through
employment.

In the Union Budget of FY 2019-20, the Ministry of Human Resource Development (MHRD) was allocated 393,848
crores; of this amount, the Department of School Education and Literacy was allocated 56,387 crores (60%), a 12.5%
increase over the previous financial year. An amount of 11,000 crores was earmarked for the MDM Scheme, vis-a-vis
10,500 crores the previous year, an increase of 4.76%.

The Government of India increased the cooking conversion cost of the MDM Programme for FY 2018-19 by 5.35% over
the previous rates.

FEEDING OPERATIONS

With the support from the Government, the Foundation has been able to achieve a Compounded Annual Growth Rate
(CAGR) of 8% on feeding volume and 6% in the strength of enrolled beneficiaries during the past 10 years, starting
from FY 2009-10 to FY 2018-19.

During FY 2018-19, the Foundation added 8 new kitchens - Kandi in Telangana; Bhilwara, Udaipur, Bikaner, and
Jhalawar in Rajasthan; Maht in Uttar Pradesh; and Gudivada and Kuppam in Andhra Pradesh. These new kitchens
serve 111,526 beneficiaries.

The feeding volume of the Foundation’s school feeding programme increased to 3,065 lakhs during FY 2018-19,
representing a growth of 6% over the previous year. For the FY 2019-20, the projected meal volume is 4,044 lakhs and
the estimated requirement of funds for feeding children, over and above the Government’s contributions, would be
approximately 3298 crores.

The attendance to enrolled strength in schools where Your Foundation serves is unchanged. It is in the range of 65% to
66%.

We reach out to 1.8 million beneficiaries across 18,192 schools every school day. We also serve in 3170 Anganwadi
Centres.

QUALITY

Food safety is of utmost importance to us, and we continuously strive to pursue the highest standards of quality, safety,
and efficiency. We received ISO 22000:2005 certification for the Bhavnagar (Gujarat) and Bhubaneswar (Odisha)
kitchens. In another 10 kitchens, we are in the process of implementing the Food Safety Management System (FSMS)
based on ISO 22000:2018. The Foundation plans to achieve these certifications for all its kitchens over the coming
years. DNV GL conducted periodic surveillance audits of 15 centralised kitchens and appreciated our quality systems.

Our New Product Development Centre (NPDC) has developed new recipes as well as optimised new products for our
feeding programmes. The NPDC has also trained the staff members of our production and quality teams in various
locations on the cooking process of these recipes.

The Foundation’s Food Safety and Quality Control (FSQC) Lab in Ahmedabad received accreditation under

ISO/IEC 17025:2005 standards from the National Accreditation Board for Testing and Calibration Laboratories (NABL)
and began operations. We also operationalised a Waste-Water Testing Lab in Ahmedabad and plan to set up such labs
in Lucknow and Hubballi. We have also set up mini food labs in the Bhavnagar, Bhuj, and Guwahati kitchens and aim
to set up more such labs in Silvassa, Vrindavan, and Bhubaneswar.

We have FSQC labs in Ahmedabad, Lucknow, Jigani, Visakhapatnam, Hubballi, Bhilai, Guwahati, Nathdwara, Bhuj,
and Bhavnagar. The objective of these labs is to check the quality of raw materials and water used in the kitchens, test
products and cooked meals for analysing their nutritional content, and monitor processes to ensure safety, hygiene,
and cleanliness in all kitchens.

Fortification

The Foundation started fortification of rice in June 2018 in the Ahmedabad kitchen. The rice is fortified with iron,

folic acid, and vitamin B12. We have extended the fortification of rice to our beneficiaries in Anganwadi Centres in
Hyderabad, Ahmedabad, and Warangal. Presently, the rice fortification covers about 40% of our overall reach. We have
partnered with Global Alliance for Improved Nutrition (GAIN) and Nutritional International (NI) as technical partners
to extend the scope of fortification to oil, milk, salt, and wheat for our school feeding programme.

LEARNING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Akshaya Patra Academy - our Learning and Development (L&D) vertical, was formally instituted in 2017.
Proficient trainers, both external and internal, have been involved in promoting learning and development amongst
our employees, which will enable us to build our future leaders. The Academy has been designed with the objective

of capacity and skill-building for the Foundation’s employees in the areas of operations, resource mobilisation, and
leadership. The outcomes of these training sessions are aimed at developing the ability to communicate effectively,
acquire technical knowledge, and management and leadership skills as well as increasing awareness among employees
about their social, cultural, global, and environmental responsibilities.

Your Foundation has formed a Consultative Council comprising of eminent leaders and experts with rich experience
in their respective fields. The Council guides our senior management team in bringing an innovative aspect for
better creative thinking and provides insights on organisational risks, future drivers of growth, etc. It aims at the
improvement of organisational performance through innovative ideas and solutions.
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CHALLENGES

Sustenance to Fund the Deficit from Operations

One of the foremost challenges is to fund the deficit from operations over and above the Governments’ support. This is
addressed through fundraising from various sources to meet the revenue expenditure and capital expenditure required
in our kitchens. The CSR mandate and the Foundation’s efforts to reach out to corporate houses and trusts has helped
raise funds to meet the cost of operations in addition to the Governments’ support.

Food Safety and Quality

Cooking on a large scale comes with its share of challenges related to handling, preparation, and delivery of the food.
The organisation addresses these challenges by adhering to food quality and safety guidelines, which involves aspects
such as stringent check on raw materials received, close monitoring and control of processes, testing of cooked food in
laboratories, regular monitoring of the distribution process, and continuous training of staff in food safety and hygiene
best practices.

Safety of Food after it is Delivered

The Foundation understands the importance of due adherence to food safety right until the food is consumed

by children. This, however, is not directly in our control as the teaching and non-teaching staff are assigned this
responsibility. We strive to inculcate proper food handling practices in the school staff, making them aware of the dos
and don’ts of the process, to ensure that the highest standards of food safety are maintained after we deliver the food,
right until the moment it is consumed.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) AND ERP

The Foundation continually embraces new technologies and strengthens existing ones to enhance programme
management. The IT function of the Foundation has adopted several measures, such as Qlik Sense Business
Intelligence (BI) Tool and a mobile application, to digitise production planning.

PLANS FOR THE YEAR 2019-20
The Foundation is expected to increase its reach in new geographical areas to reach out to more children.

The status of the ongoing projects is provided in the next page.

Your Foundation is also serving beneficiaries in Anganwadi Centres (Integrated Child Development Scheme) under the
aegis of the Ministry of Women and Child Development (MW&CD) for 300 to 330 days in a year. Towards this end, we
will continue to raise funds to meet the deficit in the cost of operations.

We look forward to continuously utilise our kitchens for other feeding programmes and reach out to more beneficiaries
in a sustainable manner.

The support received from all our stakeholders has enabled Your Foundation to reach 1.8 million beneficiaries during
the year 2018-19.

We look forward to this constant support in the coming year as well.

Location State/U.T. Capacity (in lakhs)
Gambheeram (Visakhapatnam) 0.30
Mangalagiri 0.70
Ongole Andhra Pradesh 0.05
Eluru 0.07
Srikakulam 0.25
Jorhat 0.50
Guwahati Assam 0.50
Daman Daman and Diu (U.T.) 1.00
Delhi (Badli) 0.25
Delhi (Mohan Co-operative Ind. Estate) Delhi 0.25
Delhi (Jahangirpuri) 0.25
Delhi (Gole Market) 0.08
Bhuj 0.50
Mansa Gujarat 0.25
Jamnagar 0.50
Hazaribagh Jharkhand 0.70
Bhiwandi 0.25
Pune Maharashtra 0.10
Panvel 0.10
Puducherry Puducherry 0.50
Chittorgarh Rajasthan 0.35
Mehboobnagar Telangana 0.20
Varanasi 1.00
Gorakhpur 0.05
Agra 0.50
Kanpur Uttar Pradesh N
Ghaziabad 0.50
Ambedkar Nagar 0.50
Kashipur 0.25
Rudrapur 0.35
Sitarganj 0.20
Dehradun Uttarakhand 0.20
Haridwar 0.20
Gadarpur 0.10
Roorkee 0.65
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¢ Children enjoying a mid—ty meal in school
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Independent Auditors” Repart
To the Board of Trustees of The Aksbaya Patra Foundation

Opinion

We have audited the financial statemsents of The Akshaya Patra Foundation (*Tust™), which compeise the
bulance sheet 55t 31 Masch 2019, the income and expenditure necount and the receipt and payments accoent
fior the vear then ended, and notes 1o the financial sxtements, including a summary of significast accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the sccompanying financial statcment give a e and fair view of the firencial position of the
Trust a5 at 31 March 2019, ardd of s finaecial performance for the year then ended in accordance with i
MNote | of the financial statersents, as there are presently no suthoritatively established sccounting principles
for the spocialised aspocts rebased 1o charitabde trasts pot having amy commercial activitics.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our mufil in scoordance with e Sandards on Audiing (5As) Bsued by Institute of Charered
Accourgant of ledia (ICAIL Our responsibilitios undes tbose standards are further described in ihe Auditor's
Respossibllities for the Audh of the Financial Statements section of our report, Wi ane independer of the Trust in
accondancs with the ethizal requirements that are refevant to our audil of the fnancial staements. and we hine
fulfilled our other cthical respanssbiliies in accordange with hese requirements. W bebirve that the audit evidende
e have oblained i sulficient and sppropeiabe b provide 8 basks Bor our opinion.

Responsibilities of Trust®s Managemeat amil Those Charged with Ccovernanee for the Financial Statcnsents

Trust"s Manageont is iexponsible for the preparaiion and fair presentation of the Bnancial stabénsents in aceordances
with ihe aforesaid Accounting poficies, and for ssch inlermal comml as mansgement detenmines Is necessary o
cnable the prepasation of financial stalements that are Free from maderial misststement, whether due 1o fraud or
rrar.

In preparing the financisl siatements, Tnst's managemsenl is responsible for assessing the Trust's abdlisy 1o continue
s @ going concern, dischkning, as applicable, matiers related o going concern and using the going concemn basis of
accounting unless managemend sither Imends 10 lhquidsse the Trust or io cease operations, or has no noalistic
aleermative but 1o do sa,

Those charged with govemance are nesponaible for oversesing the Trust's financial reposting process,
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BSRECo LLP
The Akshayn Patra Feundation

Independent Audier's Repart (Contined)
Amdifor"s Hesponsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis

Our objectives sre io obtain reasonable sssurance aboutl whether the financial stalements a8 & whele are free From
material misstatement, whether due o frasd or ermor, and o issue an audiiors repon that includes our opinson.
Reasanable assurance is a high level of nasurance, but is ol a gasrandes that an asdit condiscied in sccordance with
SAs will always detect a maberal misstaemeel when i eosts, Misstatements can arise firom frawd of error and are
wansidened maverial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could ressonably be expecied 1o influence the economic
decizbons of s taken on the basis of thes: financial siatements.

A part of nn sud in nccordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
thresghout the audil. We alsoc

o Ddertify and asses the risks of material messtmement of the fiawncial saiemenis, whether due o frsud or emroe,
design and perform audit procedures respoesive 10 those risks, and obmin audit evidence that i sufficient and
appropriae Yo provide 8 hasis fof our opinian, The risk of nod detecting a matevial misststement resulting from fraud
Is higher than for one resulting from error, s fraad may involve collusion, forgery, indentional omissiong,
misepresentations, of the cverride of imemal controd,

*  Obitnin on understanding of intemnal control relitvant 1o the sudit in onder 1o design audin procedures that ane
appropriate in the circumatances, but not for the purpase of expressing an opirdon on the effeetiveness ofthe Trsi's
internal contral.

Evnlaste the appropristencss of accousiing policies wed snd the reasonableness of accowning estimates and related
dischosares made by managemen,

= Conglude on the appropriateness of Trust's manageenent's use of ihe going concem basds of accousting and.
bazed on the audil svidence obtained, whether a malerial uncerainty exists relaied 1o events or condéthons that may
casd significant doubl on the Trast's abdliny 10 coentinue &5 3 golrg concem, M we eonciude that o material uncerainty
exisls, we ane requined Lo draw stiention in owr auditor's report 1o the relsied disclosures in the project financial
stements of, if such disclosures are inadequate, 1o madify our opinkon. Our conclusions. sne based on the audit
evidence obiained up io the date of our nuditor”s report. However, fulure everits o conditions may camse the Toast
00 CERSE [0 CONEINGE A% & RN Concem,

Wi commumicate with those changed with governance regarding. amsong other maness, the planned scope and tming
of the audit and significam ausdit findings, including any sipnificant deficiencies in internal control that we identify

during our aadit,
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The Akshaya Fatra Foundation The Akshayu Patra Foundation
1. Significant accounting palicies 1. Significant secounting policies (continued)

L1 Ovganisation overview Deprecinion
The Akshaya Patrn Foundation ('the Trust” ar *TAPF') is registered under Indian Trast Act Deprecistion on fixed nssets is provided on a straight-line method basls over the
1882 as a Public Charitable Trust. It was formed on | July 2000 and was registered an 16 estimated usefisl life as follows:

Oetober 2001, The principal activity of the Tnest is to implement the mid-day meal program
af Governmend of India through respective stabe government for the children studving in Class of assets

government and municipal schoods. Buildings

The Trust is also imvolved in vasious other charilahle activities such s providing food for Eichen cquipments
babies and imothers in Anganwadis e inrplenienting virious other programs for the reliel of oo

the pooe. Oiffice and odher equipments

1.2 Sigmificant accoumting policies

{il  Basis of preparation af financial statements

The balance sheet and income and expendiure accounts are prepared under the
historical cost convention and the accounting is on accrual basis, In the absence of any
authoritatively established sceounting principles for the specialised aspects rolsied to
charitable erusts which do not carry oul any commercinl activity, these stahemsents have
been prepared in accordance with the significant accounting policies as described
below, Thens are no other trusts or entities over which TAPF exercises controlling
interest, thus there is no requiremem of consolidating any emitbes into the TAPF's
financial statements, The fnancial siatements are prepared i Indian Hupees ansd
rournled off 1o the nearest lakh.

U'se of extimatex

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the significant
ncoounting policies requincs that the Board of Trustees of the Trust (*Trustess”) make
estimates and assumplions that affect the reported amounts of income and expenditure
of the year and reported balances of assets and fabiliies. Actinl resaibs could differ
from those estimates. Any revision to sccounting exlimates is recognized prospectively
in current and futiare periods,

Properiy, plami & equipment

Fined assets are stated at cost of ncquisition of cormstruction, less scoumulased
deprecision, The cost of lixed aszets includes the purchase cost of fixed assets and any
other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets 1o their warking conditon for the
interdded use, Borrowing costs, if any. direetly atiributable to scquisilion or construction
of those flxed assets which necessarily 1ake a substantial pericd of time to get ready for
their imerded use are capitalised.

Intangible assets are necorded al the consideration paid for acquisition of mich assets
and are carried af cost bess accumulated amortization,

Fixed assets received as denation in kind are measured and recognised at fair value on
the date of being ready for thelr intended e,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets as a1 the balance sheet date are
disclossd under long-term loars snd advances.

Computes equipmens
Furnitwre and fixtures
Wehicles

[Rseribion vessels
Intangible asseis

Land is nol depreciated. Depreciation on leasehald improvements |s provided over the
primary lease term or the usefil fife of assets, whichever is lower.

Depreciation is charged on a proporiionaie basis for all asiets purchased and sold during
e Sear.

Individual low cost mssets, sequired for less than Rs 5000 (other 1han distribugion
vessels), are depreciated and amornised fully in the vear of acquisitien.

fnveniory

Inventory comprises provisions and groceries which mclude food grans, dhal & pulses,
oils and ghee and other ioms like sparcs and fuel.  Inversory is valsed at cost,
devermined under the Firtt In First Onit methed.

In cose of Govermment grants of rice and wheat in kind, the inventory cost is
determined at the lower of the market price or govemmen! regulated price,

Cost of invendory, ather than those received a5 government grants, compeises panchase
cost and all expenses incurred In bringing the mventory to e present localion and
condition,

Inventories received & domation in kind are mexsured ot fair value on ihe dme of
receipd,

firvestmeniv

Investments are cither classified as current o long term based on mansgement’s
intention &1 the tfime of purchase. Current Investments are carried a1 the lower of cost
and fair value determined separately for each individunl investment Losg term
investments are carried at cost less diminution, other than lemporary, in value,
determined separately for each individual investment, Profit or loss on sale of
investmeents is determined separaiely for sach mvestnient,




The Akshaya Patra Foundation The Akshaya Patra Foundation
L. Signiflicani accounting policics (continaed) L. Signilicant acconnting policies (continued)

i) Revemie recogmition
Donations received in cash, other than those received for depeeciable fixed assets, are AR Mvenpwenhinge Sanbue
recognized as Income when the donation is received, except where the terms and Transaction: Foreign exchange transactions are recorded al o rafe that approximases the
conditions require the donations to be utilised over o certain period. Such donations are exchange rate prévailing on the date of the transaction, The difference between the rae
accandingly recognized mteably over the period of usage. The defemed income is ar which foreign cumency tramsactions ane accounted and the mie at which they are
disclosed as “Deferred donation — feeding” under other current Habilities in the balance realized is recognized in the income and expendituse accoant,

sheet,
Donations received in kind, other than those received for depeeciable fixed aset are FIINS A I DENE adiritses
measured at fair value on the date of receipt and recognized a3 income only upon their Provislons are recognlzed when, as a nesult of obligating events, theve is a present

utilisation. Umailised donations are deferred and disclosed as kind donations or grain W,IMWW“WW“WN*MﬁMMH

grants received in advance under other current liabilitics in the balance sheet.
Contingent Hability disclosure is made when, as a result of obligaiing events, there iz a

Dranations made with a specific direction that they shall form pant of the corpus fund o
endowment fund of the Trust are classified as such. and are dircetly reflected as trust o e e e dactic i

fund receipts in the balance sheet. : -
- Mo provision or discloswne is made when. as a resul of obligating events. there is a

Government gramts related 1o subsidy received in cash or in kind are recognised s possible obligation or & present obligation where the likelfibood of an cutleow of

incomie when the obligation associsted with the grant is perfomed and right 10 receive resounces is remose,

money is established and reflected as receivables in the balance shect, The value of

subsidies and domations received in kind is determined based on the lower of market Imipairetent of assers

price or govemment regulated price of those goods a the time of receipl The Trusi periodically assesses whether there is any indication that an ssset may be

Donation and Govermment grant received in cash towards depreciable fived assets. the impaired, If any such indication exists, the Trust estimates the recoverable amount of
cwmership of which lics with the Trust, are treated as deferred donation meome and the assed. I such recoverable amount of the asset Is less than its camying amount, the

recognized as donation income on a systematic and rational basis over the usefisl life of carrying amount is reduced o its recoverable nmount. The reduction Is treated s an
impairment loss and is recognized in the income amd cxpenditure secount  IF & the

the :

s balance sheet date theee is an indication that if & previously nssessed impairment boss no
Donation received in cash towards non-deprecishle fixed assets, the ownership of which fonger exists, the recoverable amount is reassessad and the zsset is reflected an the
lies with the trast, are treated as carmasked donation and not recognized as income. recaverable amount subject s a maximum of depreclable histosical cost.

The deferred donations townrds depreciable fived asseis (received both in cash and in
kimd, being identified as funds which provide long term benefits fo the Trust, ane
disclosed under the Designaced Funds im the Balanee Sheet.

Income from receipts for other programs is recognised when the associated obligation is All eligible emplovess receive bemefits from provident fund, which is a defined

pertommed and right 1o receive money is extablisbed, ﬂﬂnnghﬂMWMhmmmwnmnm

= . h which s equal w a percenlyge cowened loyee's basic salary.

Interest on deployment of funds i recognised using the time-proportion method, based memmwmwmmmmeimm

on underlving Interest rates. Monthly contributions made by the Trust are charged to mcome and expenditere
DCCOUNT.

Retirement bencflts

Tucome fax
Caraninity

The Trust is registersd under Section 124 of the ncome tax Act, 1961 (“the Act'). The : il e il .
Undqr:he._m'iﬂnruqhh Act, the income of the Trst is exempt from tax, subject 1o In mrﬁm with the Pa;-::mammﬂyr.::t.l 'rm“' ]ﬂﬂ“ igible
ihe complinnce of tlerms and conditions specified in the Acl lemp sum payment to the eligible emplovess at retirement,

Consequent 10 the inséntion of tax liabili anonymous donations vide Finance Act ;
2006, the Trust provi rhrlhauxHTl;um gl with ' salary and tenure of employment with the Trust. The grmmuity
0, provides inv in accondance the provisions of o an - actussial valustion ol the balance shest dats, carri
Section 115 BBC of the Act, if at all there are any sizch anonymons donatiens, sctuary,




The Alakiayn Prirs Foundution
The Akshaya Patra Foundation % Nates +n acsnants for the yrar ended 31 March 2019

1. Significant acecounting policies (continued) T prveions period figires have ben regroaped reclauified. whertvet secoinry b confonn 1 th cuirenl presemation.

R de Laiker

Compersared absences Asmi Anwd
mmﬂmﬂmmmmwmmmﬂm 30 Mareh 1% 1 March 201K

muhﬁn;-ﬂmwﬂuﬁghmﬁa-mﬂmﬂmm 1706375 18 A0Ee
compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation based on the additional 2 J5 T

amount expected fo be paid as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated as

at the Balance Sheet date. Expense on mon-accumulating compenzated absences is

recognized in the period in which the absences ocour,

Leases

Azzets acquired under lease where the significant portion of risks and rewards of
ownership ane retained by the kessor are classified as operaling lease. Lease rentals arc
charged 10 income and expenditure account on a straight line basis over the lease term,

Chosdag balisds

Casl and cash equivalents £.3 Desgnased fusds & Cagers Crant from Government
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and balances with banks, The Trust considers

all bighly liquid investments with & remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three R P e L R

months or bess and that are readily convertible o known amounts of cash to be cash « [henution rocerved i lind

Disnstions related ts nea deprecisble aserts
Trsnations rvlaied te sar marked deaations - vther
A lawdag halamcy i)

The mavement in cagers prani frem govi b o lolless
Oipering halance:

el Cewi rooeinipd dharing he yoar

L Cirmmi. miilisesd dring e venr

Clesirg balange

Tutad pA+Hy

LA ihther leng frrm Eshilitics
Advaace recaved fram the Gavernmest

inher payakles
Felentsm money

A8 Lisked BTl PRy inhias.




The Akshaya Pairs Fousdstion
LMol on sccounts Tor the year ended 51 March 2009 (continwed}

Axal
30 Sbarch 2008

1.6 Trade payables

Payablas fo related partics
Credigors for expenses

Al
N1 March Z0ES

LT Orber cwrrent linhilities

Asml
X1 March 1 1%

Lirsin grant recsived & advance
Cash subsidies received in sdvance
Drefierred donation - fooding in cash

Delerred dotation - feading in kind
Creditors for capiesl goods

Hbaer paynhbes
Acrued salaries
Confribution 1o providend and othser funds
Oither [uabilees
Witlsholding and oihsr s payable

il ywar

rrar

L5 Shori-lorm proyisions

A il

Provizion for emploves benefits
Cienluity [rofier note 2.29 (b))
Compensabed absences [refer noge 2.2%c)]

A al
A0 March B819 | | Aprl M01%

Additisas iigsasabs during
il vpar

1 April 318 | during ihe year

Al

The Akshay s Poira Foundstion

L Mates s mocammin Tor ibe vear ooded 3 March 2009 (coniinued )
29 Fraperty, plant & equipmeent

‘l‘l.l'ﬂ'l.l'l




The Akshaya Faira Feandation
L Motes om scoonmis fer the year caded 31 March 2019 (contisued |

10 Lang-ierm loaes and advances
Lindegurod, cowsiiaros ol
Capital sbvandgi for purchase of fixed sets
Tux deducted mt source
Propaid experdes
Renial depotits
Sevumnty depasits
Teader depisits

211 Oher mon-current asuets
Dhepansins with original meturity more than 12 monihs

- wigh hanks
- with finangial nsl#utions®

* Doty with HOFC Lol PNE Meusing Fimmce Ll & Dewan Houring

Finagmer Corparation Lt

s al
3 March 2019

2376
203}
nw
226,54
181 .64
3262

318173

The Akshays Pairs Feamiation
1 Mk o woroneis Ter dhe vear ended 31 Mapch 3819 draniimusdl

213 hawes iomsintn

Carvesn

Biveiamein i Muiual Fosls -
1L usb P - TEEL1T wlniof Adig Bida Sus Life Liguld Fund Geoesh
v Plas eket Wiakee Ra ML) (FY  Ri 3062 lakhi)

TEITEF i (P NI e o Audings Ierls o Ly Mooy Mansgper Fusd
T Chrowth dbiariort Wt B 62450 bkl 0FY - o NIL)

ML Ui (FY ¢ 131805 799 umits] of FraskSn Temploten Low Duration Fand
Dhiseed revssth (Sllackot woales Ra. MILG OFY 18 3051 lnkha)

NTBARI Writa 1" - KL aritah af Frarklin brdis Saving Fusd Reiil Dption
e Chrorarthy { Market Vadus Ry, $60 kelckal (FY : Ra KAL)

AT IS Wi (FY 1 L issins) of” Pkt i L bopaicd Fumed Instiiationall Man
D Civpvvels {vinrkoen Vishiax His 100079 lakia) (1Y ; Ra SEL}

Suam {arresi
ey
| ivitmsai b Cxverrmenl of [ndia bosdi

21} Dvpnssries

204 Canh s kxnk balaaces

Ll and vash squivalenin
ask i hary
Halascen with ;
Hariics - emingn soccumiy
Ranicx - depone st (with osigical matdy withis 3 swtf)

Hber balasces
Dipuriis with maturey beis thas 11 punitn
-« iwathy Pamsdcy.
« wih finascisl wesngcas®

* Depvuriee st HOFE Licd i PNE Housimg Fimancs Bl




1. Modes om accomnts fof he year emded 31 blarch 2009 costisaed) - B Meies om sorsunts for the vear eoded 31 Masth 1819 (ronlinoed)
A al

3 Mareh 3018 ezl o

B U msh sabobds receivibir Trom Govomment and otfler bosdies H o
1 'mprwryd, gomridpeed pocd? B9 Do Trasm dion sions
Larsarmmsnnt of 1 i Donatinea in cash
Gosemment of Liviar Pradesh steizivied in 1adia wwankb meals
Varvermmant of Hajaubas sppceivied (n other Courniress newEnls mealy
Gierrment o Ok Exsnativad in kind - athers '

Giovernmonl of Crajrat Uit Caah Ghosbullk0nin.
apwerrment of Andhrn Prodeih.

20 Grangs and subsldy recelved frem Governmast

A Crard of food grains from =
Covemmend of Kamataka 215151
Carremment of Unar Pradesh 1083
Ciovemment of Rajasthan T
Gvemment of (uihs o7z
Gavemment of Gajarsl FIESL
Liowe: Prvmvinbon fim e ful moosivabiien, e Cavermerns. Garemment af Asdhia Pradesh spay
Cnvemmenn of Telusgans LAY
ﬁ-mﬂtw 11.4%
LFe Unbilled cmib sabnily frem Gevernsienl Cionemument of Maherasldia A
| &0
Crevermmmernt of Karnatals o0 17
Cesvermrner of U net Pradah &t
et i ajaslas

Lswarmreere of Chdiiha I
Liowvormarers o Crujary 13507
Lvgrmanart ol Arahea Prabedy LaALL?
Licweqrmmere of Talangans LITE
Ceovormrncre of Chativgarh 2 L
Cewvermrneric o & waam A 00
1 crmrmcnt of dlsharadle B ; SN
203154
M52
1354
i el ode kel el ]
Rl PeRables e it parties : 1ML

e J— 1%
Propaid ox poruss

ST ahans i) .10 Non-cash lneome Trom spedile deaalions lowards Mued sas

ENT Shartntwm lain and sdvinies

licome reatginsad Trom donalusi eolaied
deprecishle st
Donatiors in kins




The Akshaya Patra Foundation The Akshaya Patrn Foundation
2 Mndes on accounts for the year ended 2 March 2019 {continmed)

Schedules to the accounts
For the year ended

31 March 2019 & Nates fe aeconnts far the year ended 35 March 2009 (comtinued)
223 Marerials and uilities consumed

Provishons, groceries and spares 2 ERT.AZ ; 2.26 Capital commitments and contingencies
Fusi 304754
Power and lighting 68716

L1713

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
2124 Persnmmil coat exgcuted on capital account and not provided for,
met of advances
SBalaries, wages amd borus 972628 "
Comribanions 1o prevident and other funds £0% 47 i i
Conitract stafl’ 152661 The Trust has been sanctioned nen fund based facillity of Rs 750 lakhs from ¥YES Bank against an
Employee medical expenses 119.33 sanciicned amount. The bank guarantee issued by the Trust in favour of bereficiaries it secured
1265904 by equivalent amount of fined deposit which amounts to Rs 57,78 lakhs in the current year and As
13.78 lakhs in the previows yaar,

225 (Mher operaling cipenses
The Trust i engaged in Charitable feeding acthities against receipt of Government subsidy and

hence the acthdty s “not in the course of business™, The Trust does not rective any consideration
fezm the beneficiaries. Alsa, the Government subsidy {Grant) is not a consideration as it is anly a
pass-thraugh since the Trust 5 under contraciual cbligation to spend the entife amaunt on
specilied items of expenditure and mare Imporantly veder an oblagation to meet the remaining
items of expenditure [mainty manpower, distribution and kitchen ranning and administration
costs) through donations.

However, the Authority of Advance Ruling In Rafasthan under Goods and Serdices Tax Act, have
Eiven a Ruling that these potivities are “in thi course of business and hence are covered under the
scope of supply as per section 7 of the OGST / RGST Act 2017",

B b e e The Trust has been advised by their legal consultant that the above ruling is bad in law as it
Write offs - G C it ialid ; erfoneoutly treats the Government Grant | subsidy & 3 consideration under GST Laws,

Wrins afth « other reoelvablss The Rajasthan High Court has admitted the Wit Petition filed against the above Order and judicial
Miscell ; proceedings are under way.

Az tha Charitable feeding programs supported by Government is already exempted from G5T vide
Notification Numbser 12 / 2017 issued under CGST Act. there would be no financial implication on
the subsidy received from Government. The financial implication, If any would be restricted to
misceanecus income like sale of sorap, transfer of goods from one state 1o anather and the
amaunt i estimated at B, 123.37 Lakhs,

The Supremse Court of India in the month of February 201% had passed a judgement relating to
definition of wages under the Provident Fund Act, 1952, However, considering that there are
numéargus interpretative issues relating to this judgement and in the absence of relable
measurement of the provision for the earfier periods, the Trust has not made any provision for
provident fund contribution purseant to the judgement, The Trust will evaluate its position and
update its provision, i required, on receiving further clarity on the subject. The Trust does not
expect any material impact of the same. However, if the implementatien were o be affected from
the manth of March 2019, the estimated amaunt of Provident Fund liabllity not provided for is s,
21.82 Lakhs, -




The Akshava Fatra Foundation
Schedules w 1he accainis

1. Notex fo avemirars for the year ended 31 March 2009 feontinmed)

217 Related parties iransactions

The Trust has identifed the following entities as related parties which are trusts or socleties having
one oF mcre of NS trustees a5 the trustees of these entities and transactions with those related

parties have been disclosed bebow:
a.  Entithes where significant nflvence exlsis

The Akshaya Patra Foundation inc, S ["TAFF USA");
The Akshaya Patra Foundation Inc, UK ["TAPF UE™)
ISKCON Charities

Incia Heritage Foundation [“IHF];

Hare Krishna Mowement |[“HEM®);

Hare Krishina Movement Charitable Foundation [“HEMCF |
Touchstone Faundation (“TSF"]

Great India Talent Foundation {“GITF)

54i Radha Krishna Mandi Foundation (“SAKMF);
Basics Foundation [“8F")

54 Krishna Balaram Seva Toust ("SKBST ) and
Goldenavatar Yentunes Private Limited [ *GvPL®);

International Sockety for Erishna Consciousniess, Bangalone [TISKOONT]

Thee Trusl has identified the lolowing personnel as key managerial perscnnel (KMP] wha are

halding offices having significant influence:

s Shridhar Venkat - Chief Executhe Officer
#  Gamesh R = Chief Financial Officer

11T Relsted partied trarssetions (centinued)

b, The followdag is a stermary of sigaificant tronsactions with endities wisere significend influemce

e

Ri in lakhs

For the Year Ended
Particilars 31 March 2019

Income from cash donaticns received towards
mid-day meal feeding programme:

- TAFF US&

- HEM = ksipur

- HEM = Vrindawan
- HEM — Ballary

- TAPF UE

= 15KE0MN

- HEM Thane

For the Year Ended
31 March 2008

The Akshays Patra Foundation
Schedules o the accounts

L Nefew de accounts for the pear erded 35 Mareh 2009 feomiaued)

For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2019

Income from cash donations received towards
fiwnd assels:

- TAPF Lsa 110894

ingome fram cash donations received towards Corpus:
» TARF U

Rental Incama:

- HEM Jaipur

- Teuchstone Foundation
- HEMCE- Narsingi

- HEMICF- Mangalagiri

- HEMICF- Kakinada

- HEMCF- Gudivada

- HEMCF- Mallore

- HEMCF = Visakhapatram
- HKMCF- Ongole

= GITF

Rant and othar expenses pald;
~ISKCDN

« HEM- Vrindavan

« HEM- Alameedabad

- Basics Foundation

Expeenditure ncurmed on
Dehal! af the Trust:

-ISKCON

~GITF

= HKM - Vrindavan

~ HKM = Hubdi

- Touchstone Foundation

- HEMCF ~ Warsangal

- HEM — shmedabad

- WKM - Jaipur

« MK = Bhilai

= HKM = Mumbai

- HEMCF = Mangalagiri

- HEM - Vizag

- HEMCF - Wijayawads

- Sri Radha Krighna Mandir loundation
- Goldensvatar Ventures Prvate Limited
- &l Krishna Balaram Sevh Trust




The Akshaya Fatra Foundation The Akshays Patra Fowndation
Schedales to ihe accounts Schedules 1o the accoants

1, Notes to acoouwts for the year ended 31 March 2009 feomtinued) & Notes e acoounts for the year ended 35 March 2009 {continned)

For the year ended

i 31 March 2019

Expenidilure incurred by the Trust an
behalf of related parties:

= ISCKOM

=~ HERA — Hubli

- WM = Falpur

- HEM - Alvnedabad

= Touchstone Fourdatian
- HEMCF - Mangalagiri

- TAPF Ui

- HICMCF — Narsingi

= HEMCF = Warangal

Balances receivable and payable 1o
redated panties:

Trade payable far eaperses:
- ISKLCOM

= Touchstone Foundatian

- HEMEF- Wijayawada

- HEMCF Warangal

- Goldenavatar Ventures Private Limited
- Basics Foundation

Loans and advance te related
parties

- HEM - Hubll

- HEM - Jaipur

- HEMICF - Marsingi

- TAPF LI

- HEMCF = Mangalagiri
- HKMICF - Kakinada

- HEMICF = Gudivada

- HEMICF - Nellore

Fir the year arded
Farticuam 31 March 2019

Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel:

Shridhas vankatl

(appointed as Chisf Expcuthee
Officer effective April 2014}

- Fiked Pay

= Performance based variable pay

Gamesh B
{appainted as Chisf Financial
Officer pffective November 2014)
- Fixed Pay

- Perfarmance based variable pay

The Trust has offices, kitchen facilities and vehicles under cancellable operating lease
agreements. The Trust intends 1o renew these bease agresments in the normal course of its
bugingss. Total rental expenses under cancellable operating leases for the year ended
31 March 2009 is Rs 1,138,496 lakhs {Previous yeor A5 140766 lakhs),

1219  Employee benefit plans
A, Defined contribulisn plans

Total contribution made by the Trust during the year iowands provident fund and employes's
state inswrance, defined contribution plans is s 896,97 lakhs (Previous peor RBs 80077 lnkhs )

b. Gratuity - Defined benefit plan

Reconci¥ation of opening and closing balarces of the present value of the defined berefit
abdigation:
A5 i fokhs
Weor ended Wear ended
Fartitulars 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Obligations al period beginning SOE. B 62958
Sereice cost 22069 177.2%
IFtarest cost 62.68 a0.57
{31.56) (a452]
108,04 106 04
1,219.75

%




The Akshava Patra Foundation
Schedubes 1o the accounts

2 Nates v accounds for the year ended 31 Maech 2009 fcontinusd)

The Akshaya Paira Foundation
Schedules fo the acorunis

& Notes fe acconnes for the yeor ended 31 March 2009 fcontinnedy

233 Employee Benefit plans (continued) EIWIGY £OE Forting: yeay:

Particulars

Service cost
Change in plan assets: NIAPLSL COM

ed
Pians assets at beginning of the period, at mﬂ:t;manmm
fair value 3irar 261.57

Expected return on plan assets 23.06 18.90 et oty con
Actuarial gain / (loss) (63.11) 46.52
Contributions £5.00 45.00
Benefits settled [81.56) (44.52)

:‘I::lﬂmnmﬂnfhpﬂnd.lﬂllr 270.86 127.47

Actual return plan assats

23 Employes Benefit plans {continued)

Assumptions
100% of plan assets are maintained with Life Insurance Corporation of India, : e

Estimated rate of retuen on plan assels

Salary escalation rate
Reconciliation of prasent value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets:

fis in lokhs
As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actwanal valuation, take account of
inflation, seniarity, promotion and other retevant factors such as supply and demand factors
in the employment market

Prasant value of the defined benefit

ohligations at the end of the period et S ;
Falr value of plan assets at the end of the {270.85) {327.47) I .
Liability recognized in the balance sheet 948.89
Assel recognized in the balance sheet a

The Trust has provided for compensated absences for all employess who have worked for 240
days or mare and who continue to be on payrell as at the end of each financiad year. The
liabifity has besn computed based on actuarial valuation an the gross wages for the annual
beave day balance available as on the reporting date. The lizbility as ag 31 March 2019 is Rs
475.37 lakhs [Previows yeor Rs 378 68 lokhs).

230 Earnings and expenditure in foreign curmency (on receipt and payment basis)

{a) Earnings:

Hon-Current Liability

Current Liability

Liability recognized in the balance sheet
Assat rm:pmd in the balance sheat

Year ended

31 March 2019

Donations recerved towards fixed assets 2,504 85
Donation receved towards meals 6,597.91
Donation receied towards other projects 31997
Total earnings 9,822.74




The Akshayn Paira Foundation
The Akshaya Parea Foundation
Sehedules to the accounts St e e Aot

2 Noles to aceownts far the year ended 31 Marck 2009 feonrimed)y

X Nodes ao acevunts for ke peor ended 31 Maeel 2009 feontinmed)

o) Expendiure: 233 The Trust has
regraupedredlassified, wheneer necessany to conform to the currend presentastion.
Rs in lakhs The details have been presented below:
Year ended Year ended P
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 M:
0.28 1.58
11.06 fe-grouping of Other Income to Materials and
2.99 utiities consumed
e Re-classification of Provision for gratuity fream Long

Total expenditure 14.33 LEFR A3 Shirt tedrm

Re-classification of Other Non-Curment Assets 1o
Cash ardd Bank Balance

Re- grouping of cash and Cash equivalent o Ciher
2.31 Fised deposits include donations received towards: Bank Balamce

Year ended Year ended

31 march 2019 31 March 2018
L LT of
; tFand 250,00 342,95 for B5R & Co, LLP ﬁwmm:'ﬂmm Truitees of
Lien on Bank Guarantee 57.78 13.78 Firm's registration no,: 1012488W,W-100022
Reserve Fund, Eitchen Infrastructure & Quality
Initiative: 83000 191852
Corpus Fund, Drinking Water & Health Programs 5,255.64

2.32 Travelling and conveyance incurred towards:




The Akshays Faira Foundation

Receipts and payments account

Cpening balance
ash

Bank

Addl @ Recelpes

[aomaticns

Capital expenditure gramt fram Governent
Cash subsidies from Ceovermment

Cnber receipts

Sabe of fived assets

Advance received from Govemment

Less: Paymaenis

Investment in Govi Bonds & Mutual Fund
Parchase of fiaed asses
Laoans and advances

Lhiliation of materials amd ather uilities
Personnel cost

Ciencral expenses

Tax deducted ot source

Closing balange
Kepresented by

Cash
Bk

Sor BS R & Co, LLF
Cheertered Aoty
Firm Repestrafion Mo T 24E W W] (D022

wvﬁ.——

Membership Mo, 065155

Year ended
Schedule 31 March Z200%

135
23,553.52

R v fakiis
Year ended
31 March 008

093
2286122

FAELLN

31,795.71
184
18372.22
1.300.25
4546
206,15

116215
25,260,580

|7.820.87
4121
Q6.1
.70

53337163

4461955

131313
10,212.27

124,80
I1.217.29
12258431
8,700.39
86,44

107500
9.448.53
19722
16.26%61
9.547.02
£.531.46
AT47

£5.760.44

43,916.51

10163

1.3
23.114.98

1355507

135
13,553.82

1311636

H;‘HE-“

Sfor and o0 bebalf of the Board of Trimees of

Shridhar Venkat
Chief Executive (ficer

Flace : Bangalore
pate:1 7 SEP 1018

g, Bolondas

V Bakakrizhnam
Triwaree

The Akshaya Fatra Faundstion
Seleedules 1o the roecipes and payments secount

Hecripa:

Sobedule A « Do slhoirs

Dhonation fom-ards revemas Evpywaiiney

» pecebved s [adia wwands seals

= negenved from idher countries. iomands meals

- oihenr caah oL
Changes in deferred imcome from donatioms

« recenvil newaih, ek

= recinved sowandy car mardied donatiom - others

Faral dhisadan Fevehed tewarads Fevelie e dusne 1)

Dot el covpus ¢ emlormment florals
Change in oorpes. fund recespis
Chinge in endoursnl fond receipts
Foral domsdans received iowards conpres < evdoreameat funds (i}

oot dosearals raiial ey

- reehved s Badia tewands fEoed sdasta

= pecetved s ol cowntries wewands Tixed asses
Change in deferred income Brom donagions

= reveived towards fived auet

Fapal dumadon reveited sewarads rapdied eapewaiture (18

Tatal deaatian recrived 4 i+ i+ ifi)

Sxbedule B - Capes Grant from (iev ernment

Srhedule © - Cash subsiddies fram Canernmenl and Gaveramenl
bt

Cash subsidees froem Covemivent and Crovernment bodies
Chanps i cadi wshsidies provivablis fnom Ciewermment and Cuvemiment
o

Change o8 caih sshsidees from Goversment and Governmend bodas
seceived in sthance

Champe i ol teceivabie
Provition wrinen back

iLni’) { profin oo sale or wrise-ofT of fived assets, met




T Akshays Padra Fonsdation
Schedules b e recripis sed paymenis accosal {oeatinacd)

Faymerwris;

Sehedule F o« Purchase of fved assets
Adkfitiomn a per balance shees

Ay revened aa donalina

Change in sumdry onedino. for capiial goods
Thompe i retention mamin payible
Crediies waite back

Chanps in capital work in progiess
Chanpe is capils] advanics

Sehrdule ;- Lasns aad advaases
Chanpe in salery sivances
Thange in depaits

Schedube W - Uiillnatisa of material and olker olilties
Cronusmpton of mnerials and wililes a per nooms and expenditurg
PR

Chumpe in grani of food graing from Governaaml and (laverament bodicy
received in advance

Cirats of fiod grains from Coversment and Governmen bodies.
[hunps in Stasuiory Lishilities.

Chuage i soerusli & other cormeal Hakilsses
Unange in msdry credaon.

Schedulr | - Personnel Cosi

Perwonsc] cont a jped the inceme md expesdiiure acoount
Change in provison

Thimge in aocneed walares.

Sehedule J - Genoral enpesors

Cher Operaling evpetses i per incoine and cxpendian soooum
Charge in prepaid expenses

Changa in provisions

Change in athanee recovrrablc i caib of kisl

Sebrdile B = Tax dediucned o weirce
Change in adhanon s

Wenr pmded
IU March 2009

(RN IEAE]
{578 E
{2643)
{1929y
{1225
16350

TEN
IEI.I‘.‘H‘

ASITNS

4151
[LLSE ]

153

B 7

(2,79007)

{1837
6.
84351

212173

KPMG

INDEPENDENT AUMMTORS' REPORT

To the Board of Trustoes
The Akshaya Patra Foundsation

Report an the Andit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We bave audited ihe accompanying financisl statemenis of The Akshaya Paim Foundation (“ihe Trus™), which
comguise the balance sheet a5 at March 31, 2019, and ke statements of operations and other comprehersive incoome,
changes in Trust funds and cash flews for the vear then ended, and notes, comprising a summary of' 5igralcam
necourding policies snd other explamatory infammation,

In oear opinion and 1o the best of oar hhn'ﬂhu-:dmﬂl'.qm the explanaions given to i, the scocompanying
financial stabements give o brue and far view of the Onancial posison of the Trst as al March 31, 2009, and ol its
operations and s cash flows for s vear then ended in sccondance with [mermational Financial Reporing Standsnds
w5 issaed by the International Accounting Standards Board except foe the modifications considered appropriage o
making prodits asd maximisation of memnbers” weatihy, as reflecied in the significant accounting policies.

Basis for Opinkon

We conducied our sudit in posordance with the Intemational Stasdards on Awnditing (15As). Our responsibilities
under ihese sundards are further described in the Audioe’s Besponsibilities for the Auditof the Financial Sastoments
section of our report. W are independent of the Trust in accordance with the Intermational Ethics Standands Boand
afl Accountants Cade of Ethics for Prafiessional Aceowants (IESBA Code) tepethar with the ethizal requirementa
thal ae nelevan 1o owr sudit of the finencial statements, and we have NGk car other cthical responsibilliises m
sccordance with ihese requirements and the 1E58A Code. We belleve tha the audit evidence we have obiained s
suffizient and appeogeisie o provide 2 basis for our opinéon.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Trostees for the Financial Statements

Msnapement s responsible for the prepasation of these financial sistements i sccordarce with International
Firancial Reporting Standards as issued by the Insernational Accounting Standards Board exceps For such
rqqﬁﬁuﬂ.lmu.“mMmi-EMEﬂmhulﬁmﬁuulﬁTnﬂij.hﬂﬂﬂmmHﬂ
with effective use of resownces rather than making prodits and maximasatson of members” wealth (refer to none 1.2,
Baiis of preparation of financial semests. in significan accounting podicies), and for siach intsrmal canird 25
management delemings & necerary 10 eaablo the properation of firarcial satemenis that are free from maderial
misstatemenl, whether dus o fraud of error,

In preparing the financial statemenis. management it respondible for asessbng the Trmt's ability to contirue & a
gaing concerm, disclosing. as applicable, enatters refated 10 godng comcem and using the going concem basis of
actailing usless management eithee insends 1o [iquidate the Trust or to.cease operations, or has no realistic altemative
bt £ s %0,

The Board of Trustees sre resporsible for overseenj the Tras"s finascaad repoting process,
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The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Tudkependhent Aaaitor s Report [Combinted)
Aunditor®s Respansibibities far the Audit of the Financksl Statemen s

Char objectives are bo oblain reascnable sssrance about whethes the financial siatemens & 2 whole are free from
material misitavesnent, whether due 1o fraisd or emar, and to issue an suditors” report that includes our opirion.
Heasonable sssuance i a high level of asssirrcs bt is not @ guaranics that an aedit conducted in scoordance with
1543 will alwnys detect o maierial missimemenn when it exist, Misstsements can arise from fraud or orror and are
vonsidered material if, individuwally or inthe they coudd reasonably be expected 1o infloerce the economis
decisiors of users taken on the basks of these firuecial statements,

A8 part of an sudit in sceardanes with 1548, we exercise professional judigment and maintain professional shepticism
throughout the audil. W also:

o [dentify and azsess the riks of msterial mizstatement of the financial statements, whether due to Frand or erves,
design ard perfionm sudin proceduses resporsive to those nisks, and obtain sudit evidencs that is sufficient and
appropriate 1o provide a basis For our opinlon. The risk of nor deteciing a material misstalement resulting from
fraud is higher than For ong resuting (rom ermor, as faed may imvolve collusion, forgery, inbentional omissions,
ml srepresentaiions, ar the averride of intsrmal cantrol,

Obinin an MﬂimﬂLWMhhuﬂhuhumﬂhm&ﬂm
appropriale in the circumstances, but not for te purpose of cgpressing an opinion on the effectivencss of ibe
Trast's intermal conirel,

Evafuaie the appropristencss of accounting policies weed and the ressorableness of sccouniing estimases and
related disclasmres made by manapement.

Conclude on the appropeiatensss of managemen! s (e of the poing concern basis of sccounting and, hased on the
andit eviderce obtained, whelber o malenal unceaindy scists relsed o svents of conditions that may cast
akgnifscant daubt on the Trat's ability 1o continue a3 a going concern, |§ we conchide that a material

exiats, we e pequised Lo draw atiention b our sioediue”s fepoi telhe related Sisclooures i e flrncisl sisleneins
ar, if such disclosures sre to medify our opinion. Che conclusions ane based on the aodit evidence
abesingd up o the date of our " report, . listure events or conditsons may cause the Trust bo cease
i caniinie 4% & going concern.

Evnluate the overall presentation, saructus and coment of the financial statememis, including the disclosunes, and
whetker the financial stasements regresent the underlying ransactions - and events in o manser that schieves fai

We communicate with the Boand of Trustees regarding, among otber matiers, the planned scope and timing of the
m;ﬁﬁmnmmmemMWHMmtmﬁm“mymu

The Akshaya Patra Foundation

Balande Shiet o al March 31,
.AE_EE'I'S

Mon-currenl asseds
Property, plant and equlpment
Insodese 1Ax assets.

COeher nonecurrent assets
Cigher Inwestments
Tatal nom-current assos

Carreal asicls
Inventories

Cash subsidies neceivable from govermment and government bodies

Unbilled cash subsidy

Cicher investmants

Frepayments and other nxsets

Cash and cosh

Deposits with banks and others.
Toial current asscis

Twial assers

LIABILITIES AND TRUST FUNDS
Mos-current Hahilithes
Emiployee berefit obligations
Chther ron=current Habilities
Twial mon-curreni liabiliiies

Current liabalities
Fayables
hber current liabalities
Emploves berefit chligations
Telal current liabilitics

Total Babibities

Trast funds
Corpus fand
Cigneral Fund
Cribeer comprehensave incoms:

Restricted fund
Endcwment Find

Designated fund

Donarion rekated 1o non depeeciable assels

Meal fued
Tetal trust Mumils
Todal labilitics and trust funsds

e

431.59
128506
h‘ﬂﬂ.“

309268
119955

992,17
I8N
]

17.506.57 17 163.7%
365536 297166

[2594.53) (132389
20,8740 20,00 306

22784 224,81

21,816.29 16,567.6%

161,55 36055
517871
2758149

F¥TIED
_w ﬁ' H!_-ﬂ_




The Akshaya Paira Foundation

Statement of Dperations and Other comprebensive income for the year ended March 31,
B im lakhs

e s

Iweome
Income from donations 1901285 19,862,606
Income from grants from governaments and government bodies 21732

Total income 50,745.59

Expenditure
Materials and utilities consurmed 2461713

Personnel cost |2 48690
Depreciation 5,781.68
Other operating expenses B.569.17
Tutal expenditure S1.454.88
Net surplas before other income (709.29)
Other income 1,392 59
Surplus belore income taxes HE3, T

Inpoame inx expense
Net surplus 653. 70

Crther comprohensive income

Hems that will not be reclassificd to profit or loss

Bemeasurement of the net defined benefit labiling{assen), netof {17214}
{172.14)

Tvgmis that may be reclassificd subseguently (o proft or los

Total other comprehensive income, met of 1ax {17214}

Total comprehensive incoms

51156

 Donation recerved fof nom depreciable auts
d: Mxsarts peoorved as donatsens doring the yesr
Add: Cirsnt of Tood grains fooaved durmg the yow

33
comatn b i J—. CRNE e
Less: Cash subsidies recervable (hom govermiment asd govamnmen bodss - ofenimg balenge
Aidd. Cash subsidiss iocchable om govemmeni ansd govemmeni bodies - chosing balance

& Unchaimed cash sehaily - opening Balance
{ Dronation funds reveived during the vesr
did: Assers peceived m donations Sering e vear
| Addd: Ciram o7 oasd graing seeived dering the vear

Lz Domaation roocivrd for non depreciable maces
A Subsidies recenved durisg the yeas




The Akshaya Patra Feundation
Statement of Cash Flows fer ihe year ended March 31,

Particulars
Cazh flews from aperating nctlivices
Demations towands mideday meal fund

Inwestmsent in government bomds & Mulusl Fands

Interess received

Progeeds from sake of property plant and equipments
Il il il i Maveaiiag ackivifie

Cash flows from fimascing activitkes
Corprs fund donstions received
Ensforwment Tund donation reeeived
Designated fund donatsons recerved
Capex grant received from Government
Advance received from (Govermment

Nt wareh frover fmamcimg ecifvities

vt eharge b ok aad cail eguivaloar
Cosl snd exsh equivalent ai ibe beginaing of ihe period
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period

307680
15301
iEnsT
(21,217.29)
(12.254.31)
(5.700.19)
24.80

Rs in lnkhs
2008

17,120,609
7820067
AT
(16,269.61)
{9.947.42)
(6.930.48)

(197.23)

134750
{B6.ES)

1EE4

3413

(10.212.27)
230195
(1.315.03)
950,58
4548

{(9,4848.35)
301593
{1,075.00)
1,061.61

8.229.41)

s
113
B.363.00
f001.84
304,15

132690

186314
1286512

(37.87)
IR

PR T TR A

433/C, 5™ Cross, 7" Block,West
Jayanagar, BANGALORE 560082
Ph: 080 26765754 nathasseciatgsca@amall.com

Certificat

We have audited the accounts of THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNDATION,
m:HlIIs.Cl-u:-rdRmd,Rn;hjiHuga: lnﬁhck,ﬁmmmn
{a registered charitable Trust and ; istration
MMNymmﬂgﬁmﬂlﬁﬂnﬂﬂﬂnﬂWaﬂ
relevant books and vouchers and certify that they are according to the audited
accounts:

{i) the brought forward foreign contribution at the beginning of the year was
Rs5.61,73,92423.

(ii) foreign contribution worth Rs. 98,32,12,224 and Bank Interest amounting to
Fs2,99.44,413 vide Annexure 1 was received by the Trust/ Association during the
year ended 31 March 2019,

(iii) the balance of unutilised foreign contribution with the Foundation at the
end of the year was Rs, 32,61,61,816 (SB Rs. 14,8568,79% + Fixed Deposits
Rs. 17,75,93,020) vide Annexure 2 (a) & (h).

(iv) Certified that the Foundation has maintained the accounts of foreign
contribution and records relating thereto in the manner specified in section 19
of the Foreign Contribution (Regulation) Act, 2010 (42 of 2010) read with rule 5
& rule 11 of the Foreign Contribution (Regulation) Rules, 2011.

{v) The information in this certificate and in the enclosed Balance Sheet and
statement of Receipt and Payment read along with the Audit Notes, is correct as
checked by us.

For NATH ASSOCIATES,




Donations Received by TAPF during 1% April 2018 to 31# March 2019

Mode of F C - Account Receipts

Amount in Ra.

Bank

Axis Bank

Axis Bank

FIRC receipts

64,53,52,568

Axis Bank

MEFT = Payment Gatewiays - receipts

F14.44,375

RTGS/ NEFT - receipts

25,99,35,337

Dl]urm:uiph-ﬁwqu&

4,56,82,135

Other receipts - Cash

7,97.809

Total FC Receipts

98.32,12,224

-Xa) - to in prara (i

e b

Closing Balance of FCRA Accounts of TAFF as on 31* March 2019

1.21,31,011

Bank

Amount in Rs,

1,00,00,000

Axis Bank FCRA

36972427

1,00,00,000

1,00,00,000

Axis Bank Sub FCRA

B.85,5

1,00,00,000

Axis Bank

3,943

Axis Bank Sub FCRA

1172

Axis Bank Sub FCRA

Yes Bank Sub FCRA

Sub FCEA

Sub FCRA

Sub FCRA

Sub FCRA

SubFCRA




THE AKSHAY A PATRA FOUNDATION
BLK Hll, Chord Rond. Rajsjinsgar, Bangalors - 560 010
FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION

Heceipts & Payments ai st 3068 March 2009

Upening Balance
Fravestment in Fived deposil
Balapcg with Rank

Adld : Receipts

Dacmantions seceived ini

Foreign Contmbution Remitance Accouni dwring the year
Enerest on FD and 58

Less ; Paymeals

Wellare of Children

Lhilisation of materials and other atilitics

Investssent in Tived deponis
Bslance with Bank

1491 2556 1507514

120,547 336
BITEHZ ALY SH5.RLA50

981212224 643,641,001
IRHLALE EERIEY Tk
ST R

52,137,817
190,834,741
109,848,247

436,700
192,210,128
-

Badnl Bl6 G1TSIEALS

17T 453,020 1409, 129 3440
| T T
S Te—i T

‘The Sehedules referred so above form an imegral pan of the Receipes & Paymens Acoount

s per our audit repont of even date.
Jor Math Associates

Jor The Akskaya Patra Fesndation

THE AKSHAYA PATRA FOUNIATION

Hk Hilll, Chord Hosd, Rajajisagar, Bangalone - S60 010
FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION

Hakamee Sheet as om S1st March 2009

Anipund B

3 Mar 2019

“Semroes of Fumds

Acset & Deignaled Fund
General Fund

Application of Fumds
Fied Assels

Cipsrting Ralanse
Additions during the yoar

Mt Block

G0 0T 02
LR 2 O

107,70 i

1076, 7685907
— A
1,409,139 558
72300022
THTAE0S36

13712
177,993,020

31 Mar 3018 _

247,429,342
S92 0

__LIT9N

mmmnw-nmm-mpnuumm
e s St il P bl A e ey

A per cur aulit repaert of even dalg,




THE AKSHAVA PATRA FOUNDATION The Akshaya Patra Foundation
ILK HHll, Chord Head, Rajajinagar, Bangalore - 60 010 FCRA Registration No: 186421037
FOREIGN CONTRIBUTION Bttt iha Arcomal

Statemmant of Income and Expenditure -F C R Account - for the year ending 31 Mar 2009 Amoat i Rajpoey

mh‘ 1 Year emded Year emiled
31-Mar-19 .“-\H‘.iﬂ#

BH0,544.508 G20 112
3 119,929 | L}

— ISR,
Schedule A - Donations recelved throsgh Forcign Contribation
Expeaditare Agcount dering the year

154,095 5 LI ET Danations recsived fram
Personnel cost 564,704,744 IMEI5TH lnr.:

Diepresiation and amortization 157,227,048 LAINITE
Dubier operatieg expenses 159,445, 720

340,156,537 338,357,004
109,548,267 Singapare 4. B79666
=1 Unated Kingdioi 41,586,568

i Linsted Statgs of America H64. 209,745

Excrin of incoms: over expesdinue (155,089,240} 139,057,746 Hong Kong £131.953

Halunce In dacome msd expendivere scoount brought lorward A%1.973 10 43T HIS4TE Oithers 30,565,955

Bialance caricd Forward & AE1973,I14 w.

gr_;ﬁh?rwmm
s peer our audit neport of eves dain, for Tha Akshaya Patra Fesndatisa Schedube B - Utilisation of maierial and oiber uiiliibes

Cansumption of materials and wilities a2 per income and

expendiln: account L13THIT
ST

Sehedule © - Personnel Cost
Persomne] cost as per thee ineome and expenditure acomant 270835741

170835741

Sebeidale 1 - General expenses
Onhsr pemiing expenscs aa per income and expenditure account 109,548,287

Schedule E - Losms and sdvances
Champe in salary advances
Chasge in deposiis




Aruman i Rupees
Faor period ended

M-Mar-1% Hi-Mar-18

10,010,045 6.256,385

3308642 3223504

310,025 44,530
13,728,712 9

Schedube H - Materials and arilifies comsumed

10HR 590, 325 41,775,103
43140697 50,227

T, 163,933 1
I

A0, T T T 02201630
11772521 20132
&0, 743,130 &, TR BN

S 1 5 1 S 1
564.194.744 41

17865652
A 1306
I5 956077
158, 200 0158

453 ITRATS

46, TELET

Sehedule J - Other speraling expenses
Repairs & Maintenapce Gl.821.340 20,432,857
Hem I2.TEBATY 5,770,792
Sequrity charges 17,670,363 Jamnanss
Pranting & Stationery 33300632 3422770
Courier & Postage Charges 0% A% 502,605
Professional Charges 16,587,332 5007559
Audit Fees 4,752,500 2534029
1,316 590 1,IE] 463
7,398 002 7538839
Travelling & Convevance expenses 23000, 169 14560047
Communication Expenses (RN 1,442,264
Promodion & Inasigarsiion expenses 9.636,605 7,350,303
Offiee Experses 08 B4 2 IETETL
Schalarship and raining expenses 5930462
Interest & Bank Charges 1,035,338
430,540

189443720

120,554 20
12,46 522
0240
12415

TR ARDIH)
IR

131,080,267
EER PR

Schedules te the Aocounes
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Missionary Volunteers =~ TS OnalS
Chanchalapathi Dasa Shridhar Venkat - CEO
st GnehRoCO
R ——

-------------------------------------------------------------------- Ajay - Director, Programme Research & Advocacy
RajivLochana Dasa s
.................................................................... Ajay Madan - Director, Projects
Satya GauraChandra Dasa __________________ Archana Chaturvedi - GM, Finance
This year’s Annual Report has been crafted to capture Akshaya Patra’s progress in FY 2018-19. We further hope that e
Ratnangada Govinda Dasa ; ; _Di ;
it offered you a glimpse of our efforts to have a long-lasting and fruitful impact on our beneficiaries. g ____________________________________________________ Jagranjaanshra ..... D lrector,Operatlons ___________________________________
) . . Suvyakta Narasimha Dasa Jojan Thomas - SGM, Operations
Owing to the consistent support that we have received from the Government and all our stakeholders, We Nave Deen e e
able tg fe'ed more benefic.ia.ries ye'ar after year. We currently serve 1.8 million children and are determined to realise Bharatarshabha Dasa Kumaraswamy Naidu N - SGM, Operations
our mission to serve 5 million children by 2025. e
. . o o Sridham Krishna Dasa R O R e
Along with the school lunch programme, Akshaya Patra has been implementing various other feeding initiatives e . . .
whose beneficiaries include people of all age groups, regions, and communities Manjunath Degala - GM, Online Marketing
peop ge g ps, reg ’ . Vyomapada I 7 Y-~ 5SS PT PP RRP PRSP
) ) o s Manu Mehrotra - Director, Operations
The immense encouragement we receive from you and the dedication of the Akshaya Patra family forms the Achyutha Krishna Dasa
backbone of this organisation and reinforces our commitment to social welfare and national development. e Mathan Varkey - SGM, Corporate Partnerships

We sincerely appreciate and profoundly value your trust in us.

Karunya Sagar Dasa Rama Prakash - GM, Relationship Management
Yudhisthira Krishna Dasa Rasik Bachubhai Malaviya - GM, HR

Rohit Choudhary - GM, Corporate Partnerships
Janardhana Dasa
Maha Vishnu Dasa B
"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""" Seshagiri Rao Y V - GM, Operations
Niskinchana Bhakta Dasa ettt

*GM (General Manager), SGM (Senior General Manager)
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Head of the Unit Branch Address
Visakhapatnam Next to Kapparda Munmlpal High School, Kancharapalem Industrial
Niskinchana Bhakta Dasa Estate, Kapparda, Visakhapatnam - 530016, Andhra Pradesh
President Kakinada C/o Josep Primary Muncipal School, Cheedilapura, Rama Rao Peta,
Kakinada - 533004, Andhra Pradesh
Kuppam Sy. No. 152/2, Opp Kuppam Engineering College, Peddabangarunatham,
PP Kuppam, Chittoor District - 517425, Andhra Pradesh
ANDHRA PRADESH
Gudivada D. No 6-37, Moturu Road, Chowtapalli, Gudivada - 521323, Andhra
Satya Gaura Chandra Dasa Pradesh
President Nellore C/o Komala Industries, Plot No. 55 Industrial Park, Chemudugunta,
Venkatachalam Mandal, Nellore - 524001, Andra Pradesh
Manealagiri D. No. 13-145, Tenali Bypass, Near Coca-Cola Factory, Atmakaru Village,
gaag Mangalagiri Mandal, Guntur - 522503, Andhra Pradesh
Janardhana Dasa
President . Village Numalijula, Mouza Sila, Siduri Gopha, N.H. 31, Amingaon,
ASSAM Guwahati .
.. . Guwahati - 781031, Assam
Vijay Pandit Dasa
Vice-President
Vyomapada Dasa o Old Dairy Building, Behind Gurudwara, Sector - 6,
CHHATTISGARH President Bhilai Bhilai - 490006, Chhattisgarh
Vadodara Plot No. 42 Opp. Sevashram Society, Nr. Dharampura, Harinagar Gotri
Road, Vadodara - 390023, Gujarat
Jaganmohan Krishna Dasa Plot No. 55, Bhagyodaya Industrial Road, Behind DR World Mall, Near
President Surat Saptarshi Row House, Aai Mata Chowk, Magob to Dumbhal Road,
GUJARAT Surat - 395010, Gujarat
Rayarama Dasa K K K
Vice-President Kalol Plot No. 59, G.I.D.C, Gandhinagar Dist., Kalol - 382721, Gujarat
Bhavnagar Plot No. 395, Chitra GDIC, Bhavnagar - 364001, Gujarat
Bhadaj-Santej Road, Opp. Ahmedabad Dental College, Santej Village
Ahi .
medabad Kalol, Ahmedabad - 380060, Gujarat
. Hare Krishna Hill, W.0.C. Road, Rajajinagar,
Bengaluru -FLK. Hil Bengaluru - 560010, Karnataka
Bengaluru - 8th Mile, Doddakallasandra Village, Vasanthapura, Kanakapura Road,
Gunakara Rama Dasa Vasanthapura Bengaluru - 560062, Karnataka
Divisional Head Bengaluru -Jigani Plot No. 48, Property No. 179, Survey No. 121, 122, 554 & 557, KIADB at
8 8 Jigani, Anekal Taluk, Bengaluru - 560105, Karnataka
Ballari Sandur Bellary Road, Shankar Gudda Colony, Toranagallu, Ballari
District - 583275, Karnataka
KARNATAKA Rajiv Lochana Dasa Hubballi Behind KSFC Office Hubballi - P.B. Road, Rayapur,
President Dharwad - 580009, Karnataka
Karunya Sagar Dasa Mangaluru C/0 ISKCON, Arya Samaj Road, Krishna Kasturi, Balamatta,
President & Mangaluru - 575003, Karnataka
Jai Chaitanya Dasa
President
Mysuru 18th Cross, Sy. No. 31 Jayanagar, Mysuru - 570014, Karnataka

Krishna Keshava Dasa
Deputy Vice-President

ANNUAL REPORT 2018-19

State Head of the Unit Branch Address
Vyomapada Dasa No. 102/1, Anmol Nagar, Ward No. 21, Wathoda Square, Nagpur - 440008,
. Nagpur
President Maharashtra
MAHARASHTRA
Amitasana Dasa Thane Old TMC School, No. 133, Vasanth Vihar, Near Pawar Nagar Bus Depot, Thane
President (W), Thane - 400607, Maharashtra
Puri Old Govt. Women’s College, Grand Road, Balagandi, Dist. Puri - 752001, Odisha
ACh}futha Krishna Dasa Rourkela Sector - 7, Ispat High School Building, Rourkela,
President Dist. Sundergarh - 769003, Odisha
ODISHA
Pancharatna Dasa Nayagarh Bhapur Block, Nayagarh - 752063, Odisha
Vice-President Plot No. 1192/1727, Mouza, Nuahat, Bamphakuda, Phulnakhara,
Bhubaneswar o X
Cuttack District - 754001, Odisha
Jaipur C6 - C11, Mahal Yojna, Goner Road, Jagatpura, Jaipur - 302025, Rajasthan
Ajmer Near GUPS, Frazor Road, Topdara, Ajmer - 305001, Rajasthan
Jodhpur Gram Sevak Prashikshan Kendra, Opp. NLU, Near Railway Crossing,
Ratnangada Govinda Dasa P Nagour Road, Mandoor, Jodhpur - 303004, Rajasthan
President
Baran Irrigation Colony, Sichai Vibhag, Bhanwargarh, Baran - 325216, Rajasthan
RAJASTHAN Raghupati Dasa Nathdwara Ganesh Tekri Road, Tahsil, Nathdwara - 313301, Rajasthan
Deputy Vice-President
Bhilwara Near Dev Narayan Circle, New Bapu Nagar, Bhilwara - 311001, Rajasthan
Jhalawar Teen Dhar (Ruparel), Jhalrapatan, Dist. Jhalawar - 326021, Rajasthan
Udaipur Chitrakoot, Bhuwana Bypass, Udaipur - 313001, Rajasthan
Bikaner Bajrang Bhora, Pungal Road, Bikaner - 334001, Rajasthan
Jai Chaitanya Dasa
President . .
TAMIL NADU Chennai 63,. Devendl.*a Nagar, 1st Seawaf‘d Road, Valmiki Nagar, Chennai,
Thiruvanmiyur - 600041, Tamil Nadu
Kodandarama Dasa
Vice-President
Kandi (HYD) Sy. No. 607182 607/E3 607/U Kandi (V) Sangareddy (M)
Satya Gaura Chandra Dasa Medak - 502110, Telangana
President o L
- Sy. No. 172, Sri Krishna Goseva Mandal, Kokapet Road, Narsingi Village,
Narsingi
Kaunteya Dasa Hyderabad - 500075, Telangana
TELANGANA D Vice-Presid
eputy Vice-President Kothagudem Agriculture Market Yard, Godown No. 8, Lakshmidevipalli, Bhadradri
s Kothagudem, Khammam - 507101, Telangana
Yagneshwara Dasa
Assistant Vice-President Enamamula Market Yard Old Fire Station Building,
Warangal
Warangal - 506002, Telangana
Janardhana Dasa
President . . -
TRIPURA Kashirampara \éilﬁ;lﬁsl;gafn%a;;,ﬂf’.i;r?nlf;:ld Bazar, Sub Division: Kanchanpur,
Vijay Pandit Dasa P TP
Vice-President
Vrindavan Gopal Garh, Chhatikara Road, Vrindavan,
Mathura District - 281121, Uttar Pradesh
UTTAR PRADESH Yudl'listhira Krishna Dasa Lucknow Khasra. No. 2811, Amausi Industrial Area, Sarojini Nagar, Near Indian Oil Plant,
President Amausi, Lucknow - 226008, Uttar Pradesh
Maht Shri. Brij Shikshan Prasar Samiti, Khsara No. 150, Moja, Maht,
Raj Bangar, Mathura - 281202, Uttar Pradesh
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OFFICE ADDRESSES OF AKSHAYA PATRA

Central Office

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
No. 72, 3rd Floor, 3rd Main, 1st & 2nd Stage, Yeshwantpur Industrial Suburb,
Rajajinagar, Ward No. 10, Bengaluru - 560022, Karnataka

Toll Free No. 1800-425-8622
Paytm No. 7026570265

Hyderabad Regional Office

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
Plot No. 2, Kesari Nilayam, Krishna Nagar Colony Picket,
Secunderabad, Hyderabad - 500015, Telangana

Phone: 040-40031456

Mumbai Regional Office

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
203, 4th Floor, Dheeraj Heritage, S. V. Road, Opp. Milan Subway,
Santacruz West, Mumbai - 400064, Maharashtra

Gurgaon Regional Office

The Akshaya Patra Foundation
C-032B, Supermart 1, DLF Phase 4,
Sector 43, Gurgaon - 122009, Haryana

Akshaya Patra USA

The Akshaya Patra Foundation, USA
92 Montvale Avenue, Suite 2500, Stoneham, MA 02180 - USA

Phone: +1-781-438-3090 Ext. 1
Fax: 781-481-9155
Email: contact@apusa.org

Akshaya Patra UK

The Akshaya Patra Foundation, UK
1 Snowden Street, London, EC2A 2DQ,
UK Charity No: 1117756

Phone: +44-20-7422-6612
Email: info@akshayapatra.co.uk

http://www.akshayapatra.org/office-addresses
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CENTRAL OFFICE

No. 72, 3rd Floor, 3rd Main, 1st & 2nd Stage,
Yeshwantpur Industrial Suburb,
Rajajinagar, Ward No. 10,

Bengaluru - 560022, Karnataka, India

Ph: 91-80-30143400 | Fax: 91-80-23578626
E-mail: infodesk@akshayapatra.org

www.akshayapatra.org | Toll-free No: 1800-425-8622 . .
For Online Donations

f Theakshayapatrafoundation

¥ akshayapatra

@ theakshayapatrafoundation



